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NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

1407 - 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6B IN2
Tel: (604) 687-4951 » Fax: {604) 687-4991

News Release #01-05 CDNX: NCW
October 12, 2001

NEWS RELEASE

Northem Crown Mines Ltd. ("Northem Crown”) has received notice from Minera Meridian
Minerales, S. de R.L. de C.V. ("Meridian”) that Meridian has terminated its Exploration and
Option Purchase Agreements with Minera Reina Isabel, S.A. de C.V. (“Reina Isabel”) and
Minera Tatemas S.A. de C.V. (“Tatemas”), the Mexican subsidiary companies controlled by
Northem Crown.

Reina Isabel and Tatemas own interests in the mineral concessions comprising the Guadalupe
Project. The Guadalupe Project, located in Sinaloa, Mexico, hosts gold-silver resources in both
open-pit and underground configurations as defined by 375 drill holes. Meridian had the right

“and option to purchase the Guadalupe Project by making staged payments to underlying
property vendors prior to December 31, 2004.

Northem Crown wishes to sell its Guadalupe Project and Mexican subsidiaries, and will
consider offers from prospective participants.

On October 2, 2001, Northem Crown announced plans for consolidation of its capital and a
name change to Canadian Empire Exploration Corp. Canadian Empire Exploration is finalizing
plans for a Canada-wide mineral exploration program targetted to investors seeking flow-
through income tax deferral and a federal tax credit.

- On behalf of the Board,
NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

John S. Brock
President

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the
adequacy or accuracy of this release.




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

1407 - 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6B IN2
Tel: (604) 687-4951 « Fax: (604) 6874991

News Release #01-06 - CDNX: NCW
December 6, 2001 . '

NEWS RELEASE

Northem Crown Mines Ltd. (the “Company”), pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting of June 7, 2001, has consolidated its
capital on a ten (10) old shares for one (1) new share basis without a concurrent name change.

The consolidation became effective December 5, 2001 at which time the Company’s trading |
symbol was changed to “CXP” and its CUSIP number was changed to 664903 50 7. The

Company mtends to seek shareholder approval for a name change at its next Annual General
Meeting.

Following the consolidation, the Company has 3,529,420 Common shares issued and
outstanding. The Company’s Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust Company of Canada, has
been requested to mail a Letter of Transmittal to the holders of Common shares of the

Company, which Letter of Transmittal will include instructions as to the exchange of share
certificates.

The Company has developed a flow-through mineral exploration program, the Canadian
Empire Exploration Program (“CEEx Program”), and recently entered into a Funding and
Participation Agreement with Teck Cominco Limited of Vancouver, British Columbia, detalls of
which will be forthcoming WIthln the next week.

On behalf of the Board,

N RN CROWN MINES LTD.
, .
¢ _ v f‘z‘fyi*
Jofin S. Brock
President

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the
adequacy or accuracy of this release.



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

1407 - 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6B IN2
Tel: (604) 687-4951 » Fax: (604) 6874991

News Release #01-07 CDNX: NCW
December10 2001

STRATEGIC PARTNERS IN FLOW-THROUGH EXPLORATION

Northern Crown Mines Limited (“Northern Crown ) and Teck Comlnco Limited (“Teck Cominco”)

have formed a strategic alliance for the operation of Northern Crown’s Canadian Empire
Exploratron Program * CEEx Program )

Teck Comlnco a major dwersrf ed mlmng and refining company, has endorsed the CEEx
Program by entenng into a Funding and Participation Agreement (the “Agreement’) with
Northern Crown. The Agreement is subject to regulatory approval

The CEEx Program is a new, unlque and innovative Canadlan Exploration Expense (CEE) flow-
through mineral exploration program designed for the exploration of selected mineral properties
in which Northern Crown will have the right to eam property interests. CEEx program activity will.

be directed by an Advisory Committee comprised of two representatives ‘each from Northemn
Crown and Teck Cominco.

“Under-the terms of the Agreement, Northern Crown will issue to Teck Cominco 390,000 Units at
'$0.30 per Unit, which allows Teck Cominco to maintain future participation rights by providing
staged funding to Northemn Crown in. the aggregate amount of $480,000. An initial $117,000
subscription is held in trust subject to regulatory approval of the Agreement. Each Unit consists
of one common share and one $0.30 share purchase warrant. Exercise of the warrants on or
before February 7,.2002, will provide an additional $117,000 to Northem Crown. Teck
‘Cominco’s next funding election for an additional $246,000 takes place on April 15, 2002.

Funds received from Teck Commco will be used for CEEx Program costs not eligible for CEE |
treatment. - -

Northern Crown will earn initial majority interests in mineral properties optioned from both Teck
Cominco and third parties. Approximately 70% of the properties acquired will be at a drilling
stage, 20% at a pre-drilling stage with targets indicated and 10% at an early or grass roots
stage. Property acquisitions are currently under consideration and it is proposed that a minimum
of 6 properties will see drilling by the CEEx Program during the next 12 months. Northern Crown
will act as operator of most property exploration programs. .

When Northern Crown, under the CEEx Program, has advanced a property through preliminary
feasibility, Teck Cominco will have the right to spend a minimum of 200% of prior exploration
costs incurred under the CEEx Program and complete a feasibility study, thereby eaming a 51% -
interest in properties acquired by Northern Crown from third parties and an approximate 60%
interest in properties acquired by Northem Crown from Teck Cominco. Production financing
would either be arranged by Teck Cominco under mutually agreed terms or pro-rata in
accordance with the interests of all parties held at the time of a production decision. v




- Northern Crown proposes to fund the CEEx Program-by way of an initial $2.0 million CEE Flow-

Through financing followed by additional funding during the first quarter of 2002, and is
proceeding, subject to regulatory approval, with a 500,000 Unit Flow-Through private placement

- at $4.00 per Flow-Through Unit. Each Flow-Through Unit consists of nine flow-through shares,

one non-flow-through share and ten non-transferable flow-through warrants, each warrant
entitling the purchase of one flow-through share at $0.40 per share for one year.

In summary, this alliance of a successful junior public company team with a diversified major
mining and refining company, brings advantages not available to conventional CEE flow-through

“funds. In addition, the CEEx Program provides the components for a successful Canadian

minerals venture through: -
e a portfolio of drill-ready exploration projects;
e multiple opportunities for discovery and the building of resource assets; and
e built-in altemnatives for development and mine financing with Northern Crown retaining
rights for either participation or carried interests.

On behalf of the Board .
: OWN MINES LTD

Presudent

The Canadian Venture Exchange has nct reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the
adequacy or accuracy of this release.



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

1407 - 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6B IN2
Tel: (604) 687-4951 » Fax: (604) 687-4991

News Release #01-03 B CDNX: NCW
September 11, 2001 :

News Release

Northern Crown Mines Ltd. has announced that the common shares (symbol: NCW) of
the company will continue to trade on the Canadian Venture Exchange Inc. (CDNX).
The company's shares are being delisted from The Toronto Stock Exchange (TSE) at
the close of today's trading. f ‘

On behalf of the Board,
N N CROW

Wayne J. Roberts
Director

No Stock Exbhange has approved or disapproved the information contained herein.




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

1407 - 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6B IN2
Tel: (604) 687-4951 » Fax: (604) 687-4991

News Release #01-04 CDNX: NCW
October 2, 2001

NEWS RELEASE

Trading in the shares of Northem Crown Mines Ltd. has been haited pending consolidation of

the Company’s capital on a 10 old shares for 1 new share basis, a change of company name to

Canadian Empire Exploration Corporation, formalization of broker sponsorship and funding

arrangements. The consolidation of capital was approved by shareholders at the Company’s
. Annual General Meeting held on June 7, 2001.

Canadian Empire Exploration Corporation (“Canadian Empire”) will remain headquartered in
Vancouver under the management of Badger and Co. Management Corp., led by John S.
Brock.

Canadian Empire has structured a new and unique Canada-wide mineral exploration program
for investors who seek generous income tax deferral and a federal tax credit. Canadian Empire
will be offering CEE (Canadian Exploration Expense) “flow-through” units, with each unit
consisting of one flow-through share and one full flow-through share purchase warrant.

Details of the offering and the exploration program will be forthcoming upon completion of
broker sponsorship arrangements and regulatory approvals as may be required.

Onb

he Board,
RN CROWN MINES LTD.

John S. Brock
President

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept respons:b;llty for the
adequacy or accuracy of this release.



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

. #01-01 ‘ | | CDNX - NCW
~January 16, 2001 ‘ ’

NEWS RELEASE

Northern Crown Mines is in the process of c;dnCIuding its sale of interests in the
Guadalupe Gold Project in Mexico to Meridian Gold Company of Reno, Nevada.

Meridian has made an initial payment of US$222,000 to Northern Crown as well as
payments in the aggregate of US$155,000 for satisfaction of obligations to underlying
property vendors. A further US$168,000 will be paid to Northern Crown, upon
satisfaction of certain conditions, prior to February 23, 2001.

Northern Crown is now in a p_osition to commence final technical, legal and accounting

" due diligence on ReBASE Corporation, a Canadian industrial minerals company.
Subject to satisfactory completion of due diligence, receipt of regulatory approvals and
completion of financing, Northern Crown proposes to acquire all of the issued share
capital of ReBASE

John S. Brock
President

-30-

No Stock Exchange has approved or disapproved the information contained.herein.
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NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

#01-02 April 11, 2001
- CDNX: NCW

News Release

With receipt of a final US $148,000 payment from Meridian Gold Company of Nevada
(“Meridian”), Northern Crown Mines Ltd. (the “Company”) has now completed the initial stages
of its sale of the Guadalupe property in Mexico. Accordingly, the Company has now received a
total cash consideration of US $390,000 from Meridian. Meridian has also paid an additional
US$ 155,000 previously owing to underlying property vendors.

After making future staged payments to the underlying vendors in the amount of US $405,000 by
December 31, 2002, Meridian will have exercised its option to purchase the Guadalupe Property
from the Company. In order to compete the acquisition of the property, Meridian must pay the
underlying vendors a further US $720,000 in staged payments by December 31, 2004.

Receipt of proceeds from the sale of the Guadalupe Project has allowed the Company to satisfy
its creditors in full. Northern Crown now has no debt and approximately CD $165,000 cash in its
working capital account. A further estimated CD $225,000 is receivable by way of Mexican tax-
related refunds.

Delays have been experienced in completing a due diligence process of ReBASE Corporation of
Barrie, Ontario, and accordingly, Northern Crown has advised ReBASE that it will terminate the
the August 4, 2000 Memorandum of Understanding. Notwithstanding management’s belief that
the proposed acquisition of ReBASE was of merit, the Company must now dedicate itself to the
pursuit of other acquisition opportunities that may quickly be brought to fruition. In this regard,
the Company will consider several proposals from Eastern Canada, including possible

- participation in a Platinum/Palladium project and an industrial minerals project.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

v Jol)A S. Brock
President

No Stock Exchange has approved or disapproved the information contained herein
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NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

INTERIM REPORT

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT MARCH 31, 2001 AND DECEMBER 31, 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

March 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

$ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and short-term investments 164,734 46,546
Accounts receivable 6,126 6,331
, 170,860 52,877
Resource Assets 449,949 856,723
Fixed Assets S 2,902 - 3,132
623,711 912,732
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites . ... . . 368,555 586,075
: . o — 368,555 586,075
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock -
Authorized - 100,000,000 common shares without par value L
Issued - 35,294,203 common shares (2000 - 35,294,203) 17,375,019 17,375,019
Contributed surplus 64,784 64,784
Deficit = : - o (17,184,648) (17,113,146)
255,155 326,657
623,711 912,732

ez

John ;/ Brock
o =

Wayne J. Roberts



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND DEFICIT

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT) '

March 31, 2001

March 31, 2000

$ $
Administration expenses
Bank charges and interest 392 179
Consulting 255 0
Insurance 2,084 2,010
Interest on promissory note 4,013 5,822
Legal and audit 9,897 11,343
Office operations and facilities 41,193 10,100
Salaries and wages 8,338 15,260
Transfer agent and stock exchange fees 4,337 8,659
Travel and promotion 0 5,710
' o 71,509 59,083
Other Expenses (income)
Write-off of exploration expenditures 0 290
Wirite-off of mineral property expenditures 0 -0
Interest income oL {7) .(36)
SR (7) 254
Loss (Income) for the period 71502 7 59337
Deficit - beginning of period 17,113,146 .. 14,420,573
Deficit - end of period 17,184,648 14,479,910




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND MINERAL

PROPERTY EXPENDITURES

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000

(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

March 31, 2001

March 31, 2000

$ $
Exploration and mineral property expenditures
during the period
Assays and geochemical analysis 0 105
Depreciation 231 3,501
Maps, printing and drafting 0 20
Property acquisition and maintenance costs 0 9,510
Project management fees 385 686
Salaries and wages 5,674 8,077
Transportation 0 37
Expenditures during the period -6,290 21,936
Balance - beginning of period 856,723 3,180,383
Less:
Consideration received relating to the sale of Guadalupe 413,064 0
Write-off of exploration expenditures -0 290
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 0 )
- " 413,064 L2980
Balance - end of period 449,949 3,202,028




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ~
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

© March 31, 2001

March 31, 2000

$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period (71,502) (59,337)
ltems not affecting cash - ‘ ‘
Write-off of exploration expenditures 0 290
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 0 0
{71,502) (59,047)
Changes in non-cash working capital items (217,315) . (310,139)
(288,817) (369,186)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of capital stock -
For cash Ty 0. 262,500
For debt 0 380,260
0 642,760
Cash ﬂows from investing actlvmes
Resource assets . SRR RIS oo
Propérty acquisition and manntenance costs (net of shares 0 (9,510)
issued for property) '
Deferred exploration expenditures (net of depreciation) (6,059) (8,925)
Consideration received relating to the sale of Guadalupe 413,064 -0
407,005 (18,435)
Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments 118,188 255,139
Cash and short-term investments - beginning of period 46,546 27,701
Cash and short-term investments - end of period 164,734 282,840




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

Going concern
The Company's ability to continue its operations is dependent on its ability to secure additional financing.

Management is actively pursuing such additional sources of financing, and while it has been successful in doing so
in the past, there can be no assurance it will be abie to do so in the future. Because of this uncertainty, there is
substantial doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. These consolidated financial
statements do not include the adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as
a going concemn. Such adjustments could be material.



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Northern Crown Mines Ltd. (the “Company’) is engaged in the acquisition and
exploration of mineral resource properties. The company currently holds interests in
properties located in Mexico.

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 TO MARCH 31, 2001 -
(FIRST QUARTER)

Operations and Financial Condition

During the First Quarter the Company continued with the process of concluding its sale
of interests in the Guadalupe Gold Project in Mexico to Meridian Gold Company of
Reno, Nevada. As at March 31, 2001, Meridian had made an initial payment of
US$222,000 to the Company as well as payments in the aggregate of US$155 000 for
satisfaction of obligations to underlying property vendors.

During the quarter, the Company was charged, by a company controlled by a director of
the Company, $15,484 for cost of operations and administration, $8,950 for professional
services and $559 for exploration services and project management fees provided.
During the quarter, the Company expended approximately $71,509 for general
administrative expenses and approximately $6,290 for exploration and mineral property
expenses, primarily in the search for new project acquisition.

At March 31, 2001, the Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts,
was not in breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or in breach of its listings
agreement with CDNX. To the best of management's knowledge and belief, all
contingent liabilities have been disclosed in the Unaudited Financial Statements of
March 31, 2001. There were no management changes or special resolutions passed by
shareholders during the quarter.

Investor Relations

Investor relations activity during the First Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. One press release was issued .in
connection with progress regarding the sale of the Guadalupe Gold Project. No investor
relations expenditures were incurred during the First Quarter.

Mineral Exploration Activity
The Company directed attention to examination of potential acquisitions in the area of
industrial minerals and precious and base metals projects.

Subsequent Events

During the month of April, the Company announced that the initial stages of its sale of
the Guadalupe Project in Mexico to Meridian had been completed. Accordingly, the
Company received cash consideration of US$148,000 from Meridian, bringing the total
cash consideration received to US$390,000.



With delays experienced in completing a due diligence process of ReBASE Corporation
of Barrie, Ontario the Company advised ReBASE that it was terminating the August 4,
2000 Memorandum of Understanding with ReBASE and would continue to seek
acquisition of other opportunities in the minerals resource sector. -

Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
The Company did not issue any shares or raise funds during the quarter ended March
31, 2001. et

Liquidity and Solvency ‘ o
At March 31, 2001,the Company had cash of $164,734 and worklng capltal deficit of

$197,695. With final receipt of proceed from the sale of the Guadalupe Project during
the month of April, the Company has satisfied its creditors in full. At April 9, 2001, the
Company had retained approximately $165,000 cash in its working capital account: A
further estimated $ 225,000 is receivable by way of tax-related refunds due to the
Company’s Mexican subsidiaries. '

The Company’s ability to continue its operations is dependent' on its ability. to 'secure

additional financing, and while.it has been successful in'doing so in the past, there can

be no assurance it will be able to do so in the future. In order to continue developmg its

mineral exploration program, management is actively pursuing additional sources of

financing; however, in the event this does not occur, there is doubt. about the abllrty of
the Company to contlnue as a going concern. _ ,




* SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

{a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer’s business, current
financial results, positicn and future prospects.

(b) Focus the discussion on materiai information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known {rends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer. )

(c) For an issuer with active cngoing operations the discussion
should be substantive {e.g. generally two to four pages in
lengthy); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promoticnal.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National Instrument 43-101 “Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,” the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business
Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an
issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts
together with a descnpnon of any plans to reactzvate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Conditicn
Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of {he issuer's
operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the .
financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as
at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented inthe
financial statements.

The foliowing is a list of items that shounc be addrsssed in
management's discussion and analysis of the issuer's’ operatxons
and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive
list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(2)(b) and Schedule B;

(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or
disposition;

{c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

{e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the

_ notes to the financial statements;

(f) material contracts ar commitments;

(g) material variances between the issuer’s financial results and
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for exampie if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;

ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and
iil. the services prowded during the repomng periad;

() {egal proceedings;

() contingent liabilities;

(k) default under debt or other contractuai obl‘g'ﬁio"xs

() - a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer’s fisting agreement with the Canadian Venture
Exchange inciuding the nature of the breach, potentiat
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;

{m) regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
including whether the issuer has obtained the required
approval or has applied for the approval;

{n) management changes; or

{o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.

4. Subsequent Events
Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is cedified by the issuer,

5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
{a) In atabular format, compare any previously disclosed pnncrpal
purposes from a financing fo actual expenditures made during
the reporting pericd.
- (b} Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the’
. issuer's abiiity to achieve prevnousiy disclosed objecuves and
milestones. , L

y 6. : L.qu:dufy and Solvency . : N
. Discuss the issuer's working wpﬂal posmcn and its ablﬁty to meet
its ongoing obligations as they become due.

How to File Under National Instrument 13-1 01 - System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)

BC Form §1-801F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under
Category of Filing:” Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial
Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B
(Supplementary Information) and Schedule C {Management
Discussion) are filed under Document Type: BC Form 51-801F
{previously Document Type Form 81(BC)).

Meeting the Form Requirements

BC Form 51-901F consists of three parts: [nstructions to schedules A,
B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National
instrument 13-101 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that
are set out in BC Form 51-801F. A cover page to the schedules titled
BC Form 51-901F that includes the issusr details and certificate is all
that is requirad to meet the BC Form 51-801F requirements. The form
of certificate should be amended so as to refer to ane or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

ISSUER DETAILS
NURFRERN CROWN MINES LTD.

DATE OF REPORT

CUUNERGNT | o108

ISSUER ADDRESS

1407 - 675 WEST HASTINGS STREET ‘

eIy PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.
VANCOUVER BC VBB 1N2 ( 604)687-4991 |( 604)687-4951
CONTACT NAME CONTACT FOSITION / CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.
JOHN S. BROCK PRESIDENT (_604)687-4951

CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS
jsbrock@badgerandco.com

WEB SITE ADDRESS

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Report are aitached and the disclosure contained therein has been

approved by tbe-803rd of Directors. A copy of this Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

: maecna@%u? ; :

o omud

PRINT FULAKF S. BROCK

> T <

PRINT FUL- BAME ORDON DAVIS 0P tbRDE

FIN 51-S01F (Revarse) Rev.2000/12/19



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

INTERIM REPORT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2001 AND DECEMBER 31, 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

Deficit

Approved by the Directors

(17,246,582)

DECEMBER 31,
JUNE 30, 2001 2000
$ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and short-term investments 124,060 46,546
Accounts receivable 9,258 6,331
133,319 52,877
Resource Assets 207,444 856,723
Fixed Assets 2,688 3,132
343,451 912,732
. LIABILITIES
Current Habilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites 150,230 586,075
150,230 586,075
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock
Authorized - 100,000,000 common shares without par value ;
issued - 35,294,203 common shares (2000 - 35,294,203) 17,375,019 17,375,019
Contributed surplus 64,784 64,784

(17,113,146)

193,221

326,657

343,451

912732

John S?Gck : R. E. Gordon Davis




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND DEFICIT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

6 MONTHS 6 MONTHS 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
$ $ $ $
Administration expenses
Bank charges 532 356 140 177
Consulting 1,500 ¢] 1,245 0
Insurance 2,084 - 2,010 0 0
Interest on promissory note 4,013 9,055 0) 3,233
Legal and audit 12,958 44,186 3,061 32,843
Office operations and facilities 58,833 39,419 17,640 29,319
Sataries and wages 25,748 31.868 16,410 16,608
Transfer agent and stock exchange fees 18,546 22,330 14,209 13,671
Travel and promotion 1,237 8,128 1,237 2,418
- 125,452 157,352 53,943 98,269
Other Expenses (income) i
Write-off of exploration expenditures ' 10,752 . 280 © ° 10,752 o]
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 5,000 4] 5,000 [¢]
Interest income (7.768) (299) (7.761) (263)
7,964 (9) 7,991 (263)
Loss (Income) for the period 133,438 157,343 G1}.93'4 98,006
Deficit - beginning of period 17,113,146 - 14,420,573 17,184,648 14,479,910
Deficit - end of period 17,246,582 14,577,918 17,246,582 14,577,916




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND MINERAL PROPERTY EXPENDITURES

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

6 MONTHS - 6 MONTHS - 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
$ $ $ $
Exploration and mineral property expenditures
during the period
Accomodation 913 148 . 913 148
Assays and geochemical analysis 0. 105 ] 0
Consulting : 905 741 805 741
Depreciation . 444 6,738 213 3,238
Expediting 0 o] [ [}
Field supplies 0 0 s} 0
Maps, printing and drafting — 0 30 0 .10
Project management fees 1,247 82,010 862 81,324
Property acquisition and maintenance costs 5,000 1,323 5,000 (8,187)
Salaries and wages 15,015 17,732 9,341 9,655
Transportation 0 102 0 65
Expenditures during tha period 23,524 108,930 17,234 86,994
Balance - baginning of period - } . 856,723 3,180,383 449,9;19 3,202,029
Less:
Consideration received relating to the sale of Guadalupe 657,051. 0 243,987 0
Write-off of exploration expenditures . 10,752 280 10,752 0
Write-off of mineral property expenditures S,O“QQ: 0 5,000 0
672,803 1280 259,739 0
Balance - end of perlod ) cor T 30T.4447 0 0 3289023 © 2074447 7 © 369,023




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

6 MONTHS 6 MONTHS 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30, ENDED JUNE 30,
2001 2000 2001 - 2000
$ $ $ $
Cash flows from operating activities .
Loss for the period (133,436) (157,343) (61,834) (98,006)
Write-off of exploration expenditures 10,782 290 10,752 0
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 5,000 0 5,000 [o]
(117.684) (157,053) (46,182) (98,006)
Changes in non-cash working capital items (438,772) (213,348) (221,457) 96,791
(556,457) (370,401) (267,640} (1.215)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of common shares - for cash 0 263,715 0 1,215
Issue of common shares - for debt 0 - 380,260 0 o]
Share issue costs 0 Q 0 0
0 ©43,975 [+] 1,215
Cash flows from investing activities .
Property acquisition and maintenance costs {5,000) (82,010) (5,000) (72,500)
Deferred exploration expenditures (net of depreciation) (18,080) (20,181) {12,022) {11,256}
Consideration received refating to the sale of Guadalupe 657,051 0 243,987 [¢]
633,971 (102,191) 226,965 (83,756)
|
Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments 77,514 171,383 (40,675) ~-(83,758)
Cash and short-term Iinvestments - beginning of period 46,546 27,701 164,735 282,840
Cash and short-term Investments - end of period 124,060 189,084 124,060 198,084




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

SCHEDULE B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

The company’s ability to conlinue as a going concer is dependent on management's ability to secure additional financing and complete a Qualifying Transaction. While management has been
successful in securing financing in the past, there can be no assurance it will be able to do so in the future. Management is actively pursuing cpportunities for acquisition of a Qualifying Transaction as
well as equity financing. In the event management is unable to secure the necessary financing, there is doubt about the abilityof the company to continue as a going concemn. These financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might be required should the company be unable to continue as a going concem and therefcre be required to realize its assets and discharge its

liakilities other than in the normat course of business. Such adjustments could be material.

1) Analysis of Expenses and Deferred Costs
- ive E -
With respect to the Administrative Expenses of the Company, see the attached Financial Statements.
Summary of Resource Assets June 30, 2001
Guadaiupe 207,444
Total 207,444

.
For the period January 1 to June 30, 2001

Guadalupe General Total
Balance - begining of period 856,723 0 856,723
866,723 0 856,723
Accomoedation 0 913 913
Assays and geochemical i Lo
analysis 0. 0 0
Consulting 905 0 905
Depreciation 444 0 444
Expediting 0 0 o]
Field suppties o] 0 0.
Fuel s} 0 0
Maps. printing and drafting o] [N 0
Project management fees 465 782 1,247 -
Property acquisition and N T A
maintenance costs 0 5,000 5,000
Salaries and wages 5,858 9,087 15,015
Transportation 0 0 0
Trenching 0 0 0
7.772 15,752 23,524
864,495 15,752 880,247
Consideration received
relating to the sale of {657,051) 0 (657,051)
Wirite-offs 0 (15,752) (15,752)
Bzlance 207,444 0 207,444
2) Related Party T 4

During the year-to-date period ended June 30, 2001, the Company entered into the following reiated party transactions:

$18.824 for cost of operations and administration to companies controlled by directors

$31,113 for fees for professional services to companies controlled by directors

$7.413 for exploration services and project management fees te companies controlled by directors




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

SCHEDULE B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
{UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

3} Securitles Issued and Options Granted
a) Securities Issued
During the year-to-date period ended June 30, 2001, the Company issued common shares as foillows:
Nit :

b) Options Granted '
During the year-to-date period ended June 30, 2001, the Company granted options as foliows:
Nil

4) Share Capital
a)  Authorized and Issued
Common shares without par value - authorized 100,000,000
Common shares without par value - issued and outstanding 35,294,203

b) Outstanding Stock Options

_ Date of Option Exgiry Date $/Share #of Shares

John S Brock Nov 15/86 . Nov 15/01 . $0.30 . 120,000

Qct 2197 Oct 2/02 $0.30 ) - 100,000

Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 $0.10 200,000
Lawrence Page Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 $0.30 25,000

Qct 2/97 Oct 2/02 $0.30 50,000

Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 $0.10 . 50,000
Gordon Davis Nov 15/86 . Nov 15/01 $0.30 . 25,000 .

Oct 2/97 ~ Oct 2/02 ) - 3030 ) 50,000 -. -

Mar7/00 ' Oct 2/02 . $0.10 50,000 ° A
RE Swenarchuk Feb 21/97 Feb 21/02 .- §0.30, .. . 50,000

Oct 2/97 Oct 2/02 $0.30 ) 100,000

Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 $0.30 120,000 -
Wayne J Roberts Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 . $0.30 ) 120,000

' Oct2/97 - Oct2/02 ©,'$0:30" 100,000

Mar 7/00 Oct2/02 - - J $0.10 - . - 200,000

Jeannine PMWebb "~ Nov15/98- - Nov1501 ™7 7« §0.30 © o osmpoo St T
' ;Oct297 - . Qct202-- $0:30 25,000 -

Mar 7/00 .Oct 2/02 $0.10 125,000 , ,
R Farias ‘ Feb 11/97 Feb 11/02 $0.30 100,000

Mar 7/00 Ot2/02 $0.10 50,000

_1.710,000 ' . . . . . . o

c) Outstanging Warrants ‘ ‘ o .
Expiry Date # Warrants # Shares $/Share . .
Guadalupe property agreeme Dec 20/03 75,700 75,700 $0.06 from Dec 21/00 to Dec 20/01, or

$0.07 from Dec 21/01 to Dec 20/02, or
$0.09 from Dec 21/02 to Dec 20/03

d) Convertible Securities
Nil

e) Escrowed and Pooled Shares

Nit

§) Directors and Officers of the Company
John S, Brock, Director and President West Vancouver, BC
Lawrence Page, QC, Director West Vancouver, BC
R. E. Gordon Davis, Director Vancouver, BC
Robert E. Swenarchuk, Director North Vancouver, BC
Wayne J. Roberts, Director and V-Pres.- Exploration | Coquitlam, BC

Jeannine P.M. Webb, CFO and Secretary . Burnaby, BC



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD..
SCHEDULE C - MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

| DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Northern Crown Mines Ltd. (the “Company’) is engaged in the acquisition and exploration of
mineral resource properties. The company currently holds interests in properties located in
‘Mexico.

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 TO MARCH 31, 2001 (First Quarter)

Operations and Financial Condition ‘

During the First Quarter the Company continued with the process of concluding its sale of
interests in the Guadalupe Gold Project in Mexico to Meridian Gold Company of Reno, Nevada.
As at March 31, 2001, Meridian had made an initial payment of.US$222,000 to the Company as
well as payments in the aggregate of US$155,000 for satxsfactlon of obligations to underlying
property vendors. ‘

During the quarter, the Company was charged, by a company controlled by a director of the
Company, $15,484 for cost of operations and administration, $8,950 for professional services and
$559 for exploration services and project management fees provided. During the quarter, the
Company expended approximately $71,502 for general administrative expenses and
approximately $6,290 for exploration and mineral property expenses, primarily in the search for
new project acquisition.

At March 31, 2001, the Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts, was not in
breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or in breach of its listings agreement with CDNX.
To the best of management’s knowledge and belief, all contingent liabilities have been disclosed
in the Unaudited Financial Statements of March 31; 2001. There were no management changes
or special resolutions passed by shareholders durlng the quarter.

Investor Relations :

investor relations activity during the First Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. One press release was issued in connection
with progress regarding the sale of the Guadalupe Gold Project. No investor relations
expenditures were incurred during the First Quarter. - '

Mineral Exploration Activity
The Company directed attention to examination of potential acquisitions in the area of industrial
minerals and precious and base metals projects.

Subsequent Events

During the month of April, the Company announced that the initial stages of its sale of the
Guadalupe Project in Mexico to Meridian had been compieted. Accordingly, the Company
received cash consideration of US$148,000 from Meridian, bringing the total cash consideration
received to US$390,000.

With delays experienced in completing a due diligence process of ReBASE Corporation of Barrie,
Ontario the Company advised ReBASE that it was terminating the August 4, 2000 Memorandum
of Understanding with ReBASE and would continue to seek acquisition of other opportunities in
the minerals resource sector.

Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
The Company did not issue any shares or raise funds during the quarter ended March 31, 2001.




Liquidity and Solvency

At March 31, 2001,the Company had cash of $164,734 and working capital deficit of $197,695.
With final receipt of proceed from the sale of the Guadalupe Project during the month of April, the
Company has satisfied its creditors in full. At April 9, 2001, the Company had retained
approximately $165,000 cash in its working capital account. A further estimated $ 225,000 is
receivable by way of tax-related refunds due to the Company’s Mexican subsidiaries.

The Company’s ability to continue its operations is dependent on its ability to secure additional
financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it
will be able to do so in the future. In order to continue developing its mineral exploration program,
management is actively pursuing additional sources of financing; however, in the event this does
not occur, there is doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.

FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 1 TO JUNE 30, 2001 (Second Quarter)

Opergtlons and Fmancral Condition
During the Second Quarter the Company, with receipt of a final US$148,000 payment, concluded

the initial stages of its sale of the Guadalupe Project in Mexico to Meridian. Accordingly, the
Company has now received a total cash consideration of US$390,000 from Meridian, and
Meridian has paid an additional US$155,000 for satlsfactron of previous obhgatlons to underlying
property vendors. S :

With delays experienced in completing a due diligence process of ReBASE Corporation of Barrie,
Ontario the Company advised ReBASE that it was terminating the August 4, 2000 Memorandum
of Understanding with ReBASE and would contlnue to seek acqursmon of other opportunltles in
the minerals resource sector.

During the quarter, the Company was charged, by companies controlled by directors and officers
of the Company, $4,440 for cost of operations and administration, $22,163 for professional
services and $6,854 for exploration services and project management fees provided. During the
quarter, the Company expended approximately $53,943 for general administrative expenses and’
approximately $17,234 for exploration and mineral property expenses prlmarlly directed to the'
search for new project acquisition. o S

During. the Second Quarter the Company terminated its administrative and expioration -
management services agreements with John- 8. Brock Limited and entered into- management.

* services agreements with Badger and Co. Management Corp. (“Badger”). Under the agreements,

the Company is charged for office facilities and operations expenses, costs of corporate,
administrative, exploration, field wages and professional services. of Badger employees incurred
by Badger on behalf of the Company at Badger's cost plus a 10% mark-up, and exploration
project management fees calculated at 8% of all exploration costs incurred by the Company.
Badger is a private company owned by John S. Brock, Wayne J. Roberts and Jeannine P. M.
Webb as to 40%, 30% and 30% respectively.

At June 30, 2001, the Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts, was not in
breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or in breach of its listings agreement with CDNX.
To the best of management’s knowiedge and belief, all contingent liabilities have been disclosed
in the Unaudited Financial Statements of June 30, 2001. There were no management changes
during the quarter. On June 7, 2001, all ordinary resolutions placed before shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders were passed. A special resolution was passed allowing
that the authorized share capital of the Company be altered by consolidating all of the Company’s
250,000,000 Common shares without par value into that number of Common shares without par
value as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company but, in any event, not less
than 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, up to a maximum of 10 such shares being
consolidated into ane (1) Common share without par value; increasing the authorized capital of



the Company from not less than 25,000,000 Common shares without par value to 250,000,000
Commons shares without par value; altering the Memorandum of the Company to reflect the
consolidation of share capital and the increase in authorized capital to 250,000,000 Common
shares without par value; authorizing the Board of Directors in their discretion by resolution,
without requiring further approval, ratification or confirmation by the members, to determine the
number of Common shares without par value into which the 250,000,000 Common shares
without par value are to be consolidated, provided, however, that such number shall not be less
that 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, and may decline to implement this Special
Resolution.

Investor Relations '

Investor relations activity during the Second Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. On April 11, 2001, a press release was issued in
connection with completion of the sale of the Guadalupe Gold Project. On June 13, 2001 a press
release was issued by ReBASE Corporation. acknowledging termination of negotiations for a
merger with the Company. No investor relations expenditures were incurred during the Second
Quarter. '

Mineral Exploration Activity ‘

The Company directed .its attention to examination of potentnal acquusmons in’ the area of
industrial minerals and precious and base metals projects. No action was undertaken with respect
to completion of any new mineral property acquisitions.

Subsequent Events L )
The Company has no subsequent events to report at this time.

Einancings, Prmclpal Purposes and Mllestong
The Company did not i issue any shares or ralse funds dunng the quarter June 30 2001.

LLQMMMJ - ' :

At June 30, 2001,the Company had cash of $124 060 and worklng capltal def cit of $16 911
With final receipt of proceed from:the sale:of the Guadalupe:Project:during the -month:of April, the .
Company satisfied its creditors in full.- A-further estimated $225,000: IS recelvable by way of tax- -
related refunds due to the Company’s Mexican subsidiaries. : :

The Company’s abilityl to.continue its' operations:is dependent on its ability to secure additional
financing, and while.it-has been successful indoing so in the past, there can be no assurarice it
will be able to do:so in the future. In order'to continue developing its mineral exploration program,

management is actively pursuing additional sources of financing; however, in: the event this 'does
not occur, there is doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.:




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSICN AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

{a) Management discussion and anaiysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an iSsuer's business, current
financial resuits, position and future prospects.’

{b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reascnably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer. ‘

(¢) Foran issuer with active cngoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promoticnal.

{e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National Instrument 43-101 “Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,” the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business
Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an
issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts
together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition
Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's
operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the .
financial statements. Discuss the issuer’s financial condition as
at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented in the
financial statements.

The following s a list of items that should be addressed in
management's discussion and analysis of the issuer’s operations
and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive
fist of the relevant Rems.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;

{b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acqms:tmn ar
disposition;

{c) acguisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material lerms of the acquisition, or disposition;

{d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

{e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Scheduls B or the
notes to the financial statements;

(9 matedal contracts or commitments;

(g) material variances between the issuer’s financial results and
informaﬁon previously disclosed.by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit esiimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

{h) material terms of any existing ﬂurd party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;

ii. the amount paid during the reporting pericd; and

ifi. the services provided during the reporting period;
() legal proceedings;
{) contingent liabilities;
(k) default under debt or other contractual obligations;
() - a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer’s listing agreement with the Canadian Venture
Exchange including the nature of the breach, potential
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;
regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
including whether the issuer has obtained the required -
approval or has applied for the approval;
(n) management changes;or
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.

4. Subsequent Events
Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.

§. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
(a) Ina tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principal
purposes from afi nancmg to.actual expendxtures made during
- thereporting pericd. .
{b) Explain any material variances and the Impact. if any, onthe
issuer’s ability to achieve previously disclosed objectives and
milestones.

6. Liquidily and Soivency
Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet
its ongoing cbligations as they become due.

(m

—

How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for

Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)

‘BC Form.51-901F Quarterly and Year End Reports are fiied under

Categary of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financlal
Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B
(Supplementary Information) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are filed under Document Type: BC Form 51-901F
(previously Document Type Form 61{BC)). '

Meeting the Form Requirements

BC Form 51-901F consists of three parts:  Instructions to schedules A,
B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To.comply with National
instrument 13-101 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that
are set out in BC Form 51-801F. A cover page to the schedules titted
BC Form 51-801F that includes the issuer details and certificate Is all
that is required to meet the BC Form 51-301F requirements. The form
of certificats should be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complets the report. ‘
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NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

INTERIM REPORT »

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000
{(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETY

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND DECEMBER 31, 2000
{UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

DECEMBER 31,
SEPT 30, 2001 2000
$ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and short-term investments 17,610 46,546
Accounts receivable 13,383 6,331
Value-added tax receivable (note 4) 199,672 0
230,665 52,877
Resource Assets 0 856,723
Fixed Assets 2,689 3,132
g
- 233354 912,732
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites 137,768 586,075
- 137,768 586,075
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock - . :
Authorized - 250,000,000 common shares without par value :
Issued - 35,294,203 common shares (2000 - 35,294,203) 17,375,019 17,375,019
Contributed surplus E 84,784 64,784
Deficit (17,344,217) (17.113,146)
85,586 326,857
233,354 912,732

Approved by the Directors

"John S. Bmd' ' . "Wayne J. Roberts”®

John S. Brock Wayne J. Roberts




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND DEFICIT

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000

(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

9 MONTHS 9 MONTHS 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS:
ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
$ $ $ $
Bank charges 708 1,176 176 820
Consuiting 1,500 0 o] 0
Insurance 2,084 2,010 0 0
Interest on promissory note 4,013 12,354 ©) 3,299
Legal and audit 22,942 44,186 ' 8,984 0
Office cperations and facilities 95,898 62,670 37,065 23,251
Salaries and wages 23,807 41,197 (2,141) 9,329
Transfer agent and stock exchange fees 22,444 23217 3,898 887
Travel and promotion 1,661 11,394 424 3,266
174,858 198,204 43,407 40,852
Othaer Expenses (income) B
Write-off of exploration expenditures 54,150 290 43,398 [+]
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 5,091 0 91 ¢}
Interest income : (3,028) (1,061) 4,740 (752)
56,214 (761) 48,230 (752)
I
Loss (Income) for the period 231,071 197,443 97,636 40,100
Deﬁcﬂ - beginning of beﬂod 17,113,148 14,420,573 - 17,246,581 14,577,916
Deficit.- end of period 17,344,217 14,618,016 17,.344,217 14,618,016 )




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND MINERAL PROPERTY EXPENDITURES
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000

(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

9 MONTHS 9 MONTHS 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS
ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
$ $ $ $
Exploration and mineral property expenditures
during the period '
Accomodation 913 174 )] 26
Assays and geochemical analysis 0 105 o 0
- Consuiting ) 10,196 4,508 9,281 . 3,767
- ‘Depreciation 444 9,734 0) 2,995
Expediting 2,006 7 2,006 71
Field suppties 64 0 64 0
Maps, printing and drafting 1,370 56 . 1370 . 26
Project management fees 3,894 101,045 2,647 18,035
Property acquisition and maintenance costs 5,091 1,986 91 663
Salaries and wages 35,170 24,845 20,155 . 7113
Transportation: ’ 95 149 95 47
. Expenditures during the period 59,241 - 142,673 35,717 ’ 33,743
Balance - beginning.of period 856,723 3,180,383 207,444 3,289,023
Less: s
Consideration received relating to the sale of Guadalupe 657,051 0 ] Q
Write-off of exploration expenditures . 54,150 280 . 43398 - o]
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 5,091 0 91 0
Value-added tax receivable (note 4) 199,672 198,672 0
B 915,964 290 243,161 0
Balanca - end of perlod 0 3,322,768 4] 3,322,766




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000

(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

9 MONTHS 9 MONTHS 3 MONTHS 3 MONTHS
ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 30, ENDED SEPT 20,
2001 2000 2001 2000
$ $ $ $
Casﬁ flows from operating activities :
Loss for the period (231,071) (197 ,443) (97,635) {40,100)
Write-off of exploration expenditures. T 54,150 290 43,38 o]
Write-off of mineral property expenditures 5,001 0 91 0
Value-added tax receivable (note 4) 189,672 0 199,672 0
27,842 (197,153) 145,528 (40,100)
Changes in non-cash working wpilél items (655,032) (227,211) (216,260) (13.863)
(627,190) . {424,364) (70,734) (53,963)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of common shares - for cash 0 283,715 - 0 Q
‘Issue of common shares - for debt .0 .-380,260 Q Q
Share issue costs 0 0 0 2]
0 643,975 0 o
Cash flows from investing-activities : :
Property acquisition and maintenance costs (5.091) (101,045) C (91 (19,035)
Deferred exploration expenditures (net of depreciation) (53,7086) (31,894) (35,626) {11,713)
Consideration received relating 1o the sale of Guadalupe 657,051 0 0 ]
: - 598,254 (132,639) (35,717) (30,748)
Increase (decrease) In cash and short-term investments (28,938) 86,672 (1086,451) (84,711)
Cash and short-term Investments - beginning of period 46,546 27,701 124,061 199,084
Cash and short-term investments - end of period 17,610 114,373 17,610 114,373




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

1- Nature of operations and going concern

The company is in the business of acquiring and exploring mineral properties and has not yet determined whether its properties contain ore reserves
that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of the. amounts shown for resource assets is dependent upon the existence of economically

_recoverable reserves, the ability of the company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and development of its properties, and
upoen future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of the properties.

As at September 31, 2001, current liabilities of $137,768 exceeded current assets of $30,993. Of the current liabilities, $24,616 is owed to a related
party by virtue of common directors.

The company’s ability to continue as a going concemn is dependent on management’s ability to secure additional financing. Management is actively
pursuing such additional sources of financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it will be able to do
so in the future. Because of this, there is sbstantial doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a going concem. These financial statements
do not include any adjustments that might be requnred should the company be unable to continue as a going concem. Such adjustments could be

. material.

2-Basls of presentation

These interim financial statements. follow the same aécoﬁnling policies and methods of their application as the most recent anﬁual audited financial .
statements of the company and ‘should be read in conjunction therewith.

Mmm

At September 30, 2001 the company had estimated $3,800,000 of Canadian operaling iosses available for carryforward, $252,000 of Canadian

exploration expenditures, $415,000 of Canadian development expenditures and approximately $500,000 of Mexican tax losses, which may be

available to offset future laxable income. The Canadian loss camryforwards of $3,800,000 expire at various times from 2002 to 2008. The potential

future benefit of these losses has not been recorded. In.addition, the company has an estimated $10,000,000 capital loss avaxlable for indefinite
camyforward but only to offset future capital gains.

4- Value-added tax recefvable

At September 30, 2001 the company had estimated $200,000 in Mexican value-added tax which was paid by the company’s Mexican subsidiaries.
The company has requested a refund for these taxes from the fiscal authorities of the Government of Mexico. Al tax refunds received are accounted
for on a cash basis. While the company has been successful in receiving reimbursement in the past, there can be no assurance that it will be
successful in the future.




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

SCHEDULE B

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

1) " Analysis of Expenses and Deferred Costs

Administrative E
With respect to the Administrative Expenses of the Company, see the attached Financial Statements.

Summary of Resource Assets
At September 30, 2001, the Company had no resource assets.

Balance - begining of period 856,723 0 856,723
856,723 0 856,723
Accomodation 0 913 913
_Assays and geochemical
analysis- 0 Q 0
Consutting 10,196 o] 10,196
Depreciation © 444 0 444
Expediting 26 1,981 2,008
Field supplies 0 64 64
Fuel 0 0 - 0
Maps, printing and drafting 7 1,363 1,370
Project management fees 1,237 2,657 3,894 i
Property acquisition and - .
maintenance costs 91" © 5,000 5,091
Salaries and wages 6,213 28,957 35,170
Transportation 95 0 . - 85
Trenching [ 0 Q
18,308 40,934 59,241
875,030 40,934 915,964
Consideration received
relating to the sale of : .
Guadalupe {657,051) 0 (657,051)
\_/alue—added tax receivable (198,672) (199,672)
Write-offs (18,308) (40,934) (59,241)
Balance - (0) 0 (0)
2) Related Party T o

During the year-to-date period ended September 30, 2001, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:
$31,805 for cost of operations and administration to companies controlied by directors
$46,186 for fees for professional services to companies controlled by directors
$10,080 for exploration services and project management fees lo companies controlled by directors



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

SCHEDULEB h

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000
(UNAUDITED, PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT)

3} Securities Issued and Options Granted
a) Securities Issued o
During the year-to-date period ended September 30, 2001, the Company issued common shares as follows:
Nil-

b) Options Granted B
During the year-to-date period ended September 30, 2001, the Company granled options as follows:
Nil

4) Share Capital
: a) Authorized and Issued
Common shares without par value - authorized 250,000,000
Common shares without par value - issued and cutstanding 35,294,203

bi Outstanding Stock Options ™ - : ] :
Date'of Option Expiry Date $/Share #of Shares

John S Brock . Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 $0.30 120,000
Oct 2/97 Oct 2/02 . $0.30 ’ 100,000
Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 ’ $0.10 200,000
Lawrence Page. Nov 15/86 Nov 15/01 - $0.30 25,000
: Oct2/97 -~ Oct2/02 $0.30 50,000
Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 $0.10 50,000
Gorden Davis " Novi5/96  Nov 1501 $030 25,000
" Oct2/97 Oct2/02 $0.30 -50,000 -
Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 $0.10 50,000
RE ‘Swenarchuk .. Feb21/97 Feb 21/02 $0.30 50,000
Oct 2/97 Oct2/02 . -$0.30 100,000
Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 $0.30 120,000
Wayne J Roberts Nov 15/36 Nov 15/01 $0.30 120,000
Oct 2197 Oct 2/02 $0.30 100,000
Mar 7/00 Qct 2/02 30.10 200,000
Jeannine PM Webb Nov 15/96 Nov 15/01 $0.30 50,000
Oct 2/97 Oct 2/02 $0.30 25,000
Mar 7/00 Oct 2/02 . $0.10 125,000
R Farias © Feb11/97 Feb 11/02 $0.30 100,000
Mar 7/00 012/02 $0.10 50,000
1,710,000
c) Outstanding Warrants . . .
- agreement - Dec 20/03 . 75700 75,700 . $0.06 from Dec 21/00 to Dec 20/01, or

$0.07 from Dec 21/01to Dec 20/02, or
$0.09 from Dec 21/02 to Dec 20/03

d) Convertible Securities

Nil -
e) Escrowed and Pooled Shares

Nit

' 8) Directors and Officers of the Company .
John S. Brock, Director and President West Vancouver, BC
Lawrence Page, QC, Director West Vancouver, BC
R. E. Gordon Davis, Director . Vancouver, BC
Robert E. Swenarchuk, Director North Vancouver, BC
Wayne J. Roberts, Director and V-Pres. Exploration Coquitlam, BC

Jeannine P.M. Webb, CFO and Secretary Bumaby, BC




NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
SCHEDULE C - MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

‘ DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS o
Northern Crown Mines Ltd. (the “Company’) is engaged in the acquisition and exploration of
mineral resource properties. The company currently holds interests in properties located in
Mexico.

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 TO MARCH 31, 2001 (First Quarter)

Operations and Financial Condition .
‘During the First Quarter the Company continued with  the process of concluding its sale of

. interests in the Guadalupe Gold Project in Mexico to Meridian Gold Company of Reno, Nevada
(*Meridian™). ‘As at March 31, 2001, Meridian had made an initial payment of US$222,000-to the
Company as well as payments in the aggregate of US$155,000 for satisfaction of obligations to
underlying property vendors.

Dunng the quarter, the Company was charged, by a company controlled by a director of the
Company, $15,484 for cost of operations and administration, $8,950 for professional services and
$559 for exploration services and project management fees provided. During the quarter; the
Company expended approximately $71,509 for general administrative expenses and
approximately $6,290 for exploration and mineral property expenses, primarily in the search. for
new project acquisition.

At March 31, 2001, the Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts, was not in
breach of corporate, securities or.other laws, or in breach of its listings agreement with CDNX.
To the best of management’s knowledge and. belief, all contingent liabilities have been disclosed
in the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of March 31, 2001. - There were no management
changes or special resolutions passed by shareholders during the quarter. '

Investor Relations :

JInvestor relations  activity during. the First Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. One press release was issued in connection
with progress regarding the sale of the Guadalupe Gold Project. No investor relations
expenditures were incurred during the First Quarter. '

Mineral Exploration Activity
The Company directed attention to examination of potentral acqursmons in the area of industrial

mlnerals and precious and base metals projects.

Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
The Company did not issue any shares or raise funds during the quarter ended March 31, 2001.

Liquidity and Solvency
At March 31, 2001,the Company had cash of $164,734 and worklng capital deficit of $197,695.

With final receipt of proceed from the sale of the Guadalupé Project during the month of April, the
Company has satisfied its creditors in full. At April 9, 2001, the Company had retained
approximately $165,000 cash in its working capital account. A further estimated $ 225,000 is
receivable by way of tax-related refunds due to the Company’s Mexican subsidiaries.

The Company’s ability to continue its operations is. dependent on its ability to secure additional
financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it
will be able to do so in the future. In order to continue developing its mineral exploration program,



managerhent is actively pursuing additional sources of financing; however, in the event this does
not occur, there is doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.

FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 1 TO JUNE 30, 2001 (Second Quarter)

Operatlons and Financial Condition

During the Second Quarter the Company, with receipt of a final US$148, 000 payment, concluded
the initial stages of its sale of the Guadalupe Project in Mexico to Meridian. Accordingly, the
. Company has now received a total cash consideration of US$390,000 from Meridian, and
Meridian has paid an additional US$155,000 for satisfaction of prevnous obligations to underlymg
property vendors. .

With delays experienced in completing a due diligence process of ReBASE Corporation of Barrie,
‘Ontario the Company advised ReBASE that it was terminating the August 4, 2000 Memorandum
~of Understanding with ReBASE and would continue o seek acquisition of other opportunmes in

the minerals resource sector.

During the quarter, the Company was charged, by companies controlled by directors and officers
of the Company, $4,440 for cost of operations and administration, $22,163 for - professional
services and $6,854 for exploration services and project management fees provided. During the.
quarter, the Company expended approximately $53,943 for general administrative expenses and
approximately $17,234 for exploration and mineral property expenses, primarily directed to the
search for new project acquusmon

During  the Second Quarter, the Company terminated its administrative and expforation
management services agreements with John S. Brock Limited and entered into. management
services agreements with Badger and Co. Management Corp. (“Badger”). Under the agreements,
‘the Company is charged for office facilities and operations expenses, costs of corporate,
administrative, exploration, field wages and professional services of Badger employees incurred
by Badger on behalf of the Company at Badger's cost plus a 10% mark-up, and exploration
project management fees calculated. at 8% of all exploration costs incurred by the Company.
Badger is a private company owned by John S. Brock, Wayne J. Roberts and Jeannine P. M.
Webb as to 40%, 30% and 30% respectively: p

At June 30, 2001, the.Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts, was not in
breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or in breach of its listings agreement with CDNX.
. To the best of management’s knowledge and belief, all contingent liabilities have been disclosed
. in-the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of June 30, 2001. There were no management
changes during the quarter. On June 7, 2001, all ordinary resolutions placed before shareholders .
at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders were passed. A special resolution was passed
* allowing that the authorized share capital of the Company be altered by consolidating all of the
Company’s 250,000,000 Common shares without par value into that number of Common shares
without par vaiue as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company but, in any
event, not less than 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, up to a maximum of 10 such
shares being consolidated into one (1) Common share without par value; increasing the
authorized capital of the Company from not less than 25,000,000 Common shares without par
“value to 250,000,000 Commons shares without par value; altering the Memorandum of the
Company to reflect the consolidation of share capital and the increase in authorized capital to
250,000,000 Common shares without par value; authorizing the Board of Directors in their -
discretion by resolution, without requiring further approval, ratification or confirmation by the
members, to determine the number of Common shares without par value into which the
250,000,000 Common shares without par value are to be consolidated, provided, however, that
such number shall not be less .that 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, and may
decline to impiement this Special Resolution.




Investor Relations

Investor relations activity during the Second Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. On April 11, 2001, a press release was issued in
connection with completion of the sale of the Guadalupe Gold Project. On June 13, 2001 a press
release was issued by ReBASE Corporation acknowiedging termination of negotiations for a
merger with the Company. No investor relations expenditures were incurred during the Second

- Quarter.

Mineral Exploration Activity

The Company directed its attention to examination of potential acquisitions in'the area of
industrial minerals and precious and base metals projects. No action was undertaken with respect

to completion of any new mmeral property acquisitions.

Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones

The Company did not issue any shares or raise funds during the quarter June 30, 2001.

’ Liguidity and Solvency

At June 30, 2001,the Company had cash of $124 060 and working capltal deficit of $16,911.
With final receipt of proceed from the sale of the Guadalupe Project during the month of April, the
Company satisfied its creditors in full. A further estimated $225,000 is receivable by way of tax-
related refunds due to the Company'’s Mexican subsidiaries.

| The Company's ability to continue its operations is dependent on its ability to secure additional

financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it

~will be able to do so in the future. - In order to continue developing its mineral exploration program,

management is actively pursuing additional sources of financing; however, in the event this does
not occur, there is doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concemn.

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 (Third Quarter) ‘

Operations and Financial Condition
On September 11, 2001, the Company announced that its shares were being delisted from The

Toronto Stock Exchange, and that the Company’s shares would continue to be traded through
the facilities of the Canadian Venture Exchange. :

During. the Third Quarter, the Company was charged, by companies. controlled by directors and
officers of the Company, $11,981 for cost of operations and -administration, $15,073 for
professional services and $2,647 for exploration services.and project management fees provided.
During the quarter, the Company expended approximately $49,407 for general administrative
expenses and approximately $35,717 for exploration and mineral property expenses, primarily
directed to the search for new project acquisition.

At September 30, 2001, the Company had no investor relations arrangements or contracts, was

not in breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or in breach of its listings agreement with
CDNX. To the best of management’'s knowledge and belief, all contingent liabilities have been
disclosed in the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of September 30, 2001. There were no
management changes during the quarter

Investor Relations .
Investor relations activity during the Third Quarter consisted of management response to
shareholder and brokerage community inquiries. On September 11, 2001, the Company issued a
news release announcing that its shares were being delisted from The Toronto Stock Exchange,
and that the Company’s shares would continue to be traded through the facilities of the Canadian
Venture Exchange. No investor relations expenditures were incurred during the Third Quarter.
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The Company directed its attention to examination of potential acquisitions in the area of
industrial minerals and precious and base metals projects. No action was undertaken with respect
to completion of any new mineral property acquisitions.

Subsequent Events

On October 2, 2001, the Company announced that trading in its shares was being halted pending
consolidation of the Company’s capital on the basis of 10 old shares for 1 new share, a change of
company name, formalization of broker sponsorship and funding arrangements. The Company
has elected not to change its name until its next Annual General Meeting. The consolidation of

capital was approved by shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meetlng held on June 7,
2001.

.On October 12, 3001, the Company announced that it had received notice from Meridian that
Meridian had terminated its Exploration and Option Purchase Agreements with the Company’s
Mexican subsidiaries. Meridian had the right and option to purchase the Guadalupe Project by
making staged payment to underlying property vendors prior to December 31, 2004. The
Company wishes to sell its Guadalupe Project and Mexncan Subsidiaries, and will consider offers
from prospective participants.

- Financings, Principal Purposes and Mllestone

The Company did not issue any shares or raise funds during the quarter ended September 30,
2001. _

Liquidity and Solvency
At September 30, 2001, the Company had cash of $17,610 and working capital of $32,897, which
amount includes an estimated $200,000 receivable by way of tax-related refunds due to: the
Company’s Mexican subsidiaries. -While the Company has been successful in receiving
reimbursement in the past, there can be no assurance that it will be successful in the future.

The Company’s ability to continue its operations is dependent on its ability to secure additional
financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it -
will be able to do so in the future. In order to continue developing its mineral exploration program,
management is actively pursuing additional sources of financing; however, in the event this does
not occur, there is doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
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NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
#1407 - 675 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1N2
Telephone: (604) 687-4951

Tl NN ING OF MEMBER
TAKE NOTICE that the 2001 Annual General Meeting of the members of NORTHERN CROWN
MINES LTD. (hereinafter called the "Company”) will be held at #1407, 675 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, on:
Thursday, June 7, 2001
at the hour of 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon (Vancouver time) for the following purposes:

1. to receive the Report of the Directors;

2. to receive the financial statements of the Company for its fiscal year ended December 31,
2000 and the report of the Auditors thereon;

3. to appoint Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix their
remuneration; :

4, to elect Class llI directors;

5. to approve an amendment to the Company’s Stock Option Plan;

6. to approve amendments to stock options granted to Insiders of the Company;

7. to authorize additional private placements in accordance with The Toronto Stock

Exchange guidelines;

8. to consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without amendment, a Special Resolution
altering the Company’s Memorandum by consolidating all of the Company’s Common
shares without par value and subsequently increasing the Company’s authorized capital
on the basis and for the reasons set forth in the accompanying Information Circular;

9. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting.

Accompanying this Notice are an Iinformation Circular and form of Proxy.

A shareholder entitied to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitied to appoint a proxyholder to
attend and vote in his stead. If you are unable to attend the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof,
in person, please read the Notes accompanying the form of Proxy enclosed herewith and then
complete and return the Proxy within the time set out in the Notes. The enclosed form of Proxy is
solicited by Management but, as set out in the Notes, you may amend it if you so desire by

striking out the names listed therein and inserting in the space provided the name of the person
you wish to represent you at the Meeting.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 16™ day of April, 2001.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
“John S. Brock”

John S. Brock
President



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
1407 - 675 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, B.C.

V6B 1N2
Telephone: (604) 687-4951

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

April 30, 2001

One year ago, at the time of our last Annual General Meeting, we advised you of the
steps that would have to be taken in order to guarantee the survival of your company,
Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

We are pleased to report that all of those steps have been taken and with management
now in a position to set new objectives, Northern Crown will pursue new opportunities.

Achievement of Objectives

A significant program of debt reduction continues during 2000. Two years ago, the
company had an approximate working capital deficit of $1,012,000 that was reduced to
$533,000 by year-end 2000. As at April of this current year 2001, all debt has been
settled and cash plus accounts receivable amount to approximately $385,000.

In order to achieve a positive working capital position, the company received shareholder
approval to sell its rights to the Guadalupe Gold Property in Mexico. The Guadalupe
Property could no longer be maintained in the face of increasing property holding costs
and a gold price that continues to show no immediate sign of strengthening. The
company was pleased to find a buyer with sufficient resources, and longer-term gold
~ price expectations, to directly pay Northern Crown and satisfy obligations to underlying
property owners in an aggregate amount of US$545,000. The company will continue to
retain ownership of its Mexican incorporated subsidiaries.

During the year the company commenced a search for new business acquisitions.
Opportunities in the technology and industrial minerals sector were considered. However
with a more recent decline in market interest in start-up technology companies, that
search will continue into year 2001 with a greater emphasis on acquisitions in the
resource sector.

Objectives for 2001

Extended weakness in metals prices and the mining equity markets over the last three
years has contributed to a significant consolidation of the global mining industry. With a
related reduction in mineral exploration budgets, junior public company activity has also
been severely impacted. Northern Crown’s management, with the benefit of over 30




years experience, view today as a time of opportunity for acqu:smon of significant
resource assets at discounted prices.

With a renewed commitment to mineral resource exploration and development, Northern
Crown will re-direct its attention to Canada. That attention is also encouraged by the
availability of Canadian tax-driven exploration incentives such as “flow-through
funding” and related federal and provincial tax credits. '

Although Northern Crown recently reported not being able to complete the acquisition of
an industrial minerals company, other opportunities in the area of industrial minerals
bringing promise of early cash flow should be considered. Platinum group metals also
constitute a priority for Northern Crown during the year ahead. '

Our shareholders have asked about the possibility of consolidation of the company’s
share capital. Our response remains that consolidation will only be carried out in order to
effect acquisition of new assets and completion of related financing.

Our shareholders and employees are in the extended process of surviving the worst -
mineral exploration market ever experienced by the current working generation. Our
ability to continue rests with their continued support. For this support we once again
extend our thanks and appreciation. '

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

"John S. Brock™" ‘ ‘ ‘ I , AT
John S. Brock, President S N . o



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL. CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS -

The following discussion of the financia! condition, changes in financial condition and
results of operations of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999
and 1998 should be read.in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998. Except as
otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts contained in this discussion and analysis and the
Consolidated Financial Statements are in Canadian dollars. The financial informaticn
presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements was prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in Canada. Note 10 of these
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company sets forth the material differences
between Canadian and U.S. GAAP.

Liquidity an ital R

At December 31, 2000, the Company had a working capital deficit of $533,198. At this
time, the Company had insufficient working capital to meet its anticipated administrative
and overhead expenses for the twelve months ending December 31, 2001 of
approximately $200,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company entered into exploration and
option to purchase agreements, as described in “Results of Operations”. Subsequent to
December 31, 2000 and in connection with these agreements, the Company received
total funds of U. S. $390,000. Subsequent to December 31, 2000, the Company also
received, from the Government of Mexico, reimbursement of value-added tax (“IVA") of
$40,038. The Company has used a portion of these funds to satisfy all of its year-end
liabilities, and intends to use the remainder of the proceeds for general working capital
purposes. At April 11, 2001, the Company had no debt and cash of approximately
$165,000.

To date, the Company’s mineral exploration activities have been funded through sales
of common shares. The Company’s ability to continue operations is dependent on
management's ability to secure additional financing. Management is actively pursuing
such additional sources of financing, and while it has been successful in doing so in the
past, there can be no assurance it will be able obtain the required financing on
acceptable terms, or at all.

Results of Operations
Eiscal 2000

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company entered into exploration and
option to purchase agreements (the “Agreements”) with Meridian Gold Company
(“Meridian”) of Reno, Nevada, whereby the Company assigned its rights to the




2 .

Guadalupe property in consideration for Meridian paying the Company U.S.
$370,000, reimbursing the Company for expenses of U.S. $20,000, and making staged
payments to underlying property vendors totaling U.S. $560,000 (of which U.S.
$155,000 was paid prior to December 31, 2000). Upon completion of the payments,
Meridian will have exercised its purchase option from the Company and the rights to the
Guadalupe property will be effectively assigned. As a result of the Agreements, the
Company wrote-down the carrying value of the Guadalupe property, as at December
31, 2000, to its estimated net realizable value of $856,723. The estimated net
realizable value is comprised of cash payments of $593,750 (received prior to April 7,
2001) and estimated IVA refunds of $262,973 (of which $40,038 was received February
28, 2001).

During 2000, the Company issued 5,481,762 shares for an aggregate value of
$380,260, pursuant to the conversion of the principal and interest under a promissory
note issued to a related party. The Company also issued 2,625,000 shares and 24,300
shares on the exercise of warrants, at $0.10 per share and $0.05 respectlvely, for total
consideration of $263,715. ‘

As a result of the Company's continued expenditure reduction program, fiscal 2000
corporate costs were approximately $282,000 a reduction of approximately $70,000
from fiscal 1999. Until such time as the Ccmpany entered into the Agreements with
Meridian, Guadalupe Project expenditures in Mexico continued on a maintenance of
property title basis. Exploration and mineral property expenditures were approxrmately
$142,000 as compared to approxrmately $631 000 for fiscal 1999.

During the year management gave consrderatlon to a change of nature of busmese for
the Company. On August 17, 2000, the Company entered into a Letter of Agreement
with ReBase -Corporation (“ReBASE") of Barrie, Ontario, to acquire all if the issued
share capital of ReBASE. The transaction was subject to satisfaction. of certain
conditions, including acceptance of an mdependent valuation, - shareholder' and
regulatory approvals, negotiation of acceptable terms, and completion of a due diligence
process. As a result of delays in completing the due diligence process, the Company
advised ReBASE in April 2001 that it was ten'nmatmg thls agreement. '

On August 10, 2000, the Toronto Stock Exchange (‘T SE ) advised the Company that it
no longer met the TSE continued listing requirements. The TSE further advised that,
although the Company would continue to be listed on the TSE for the ensuing year,
effective September 11, 2000, the Company was suspended from trading on the TSE.
On December 8, 2000, the Companys shares. resumed tradlng through the facilities of
the Canadian Venture Exchange ("CDNX"),

Eiscal 1999 _
During the year ended December 31, 1899, the Company entered into a number of
transactions to provide working capital and reduce debt. In connection with a portion of

an indebtedness with a related party, the Company issued a convertible promissory
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note in the principal amount of $360,000. The promissory note was convertible to

5,142,857 common shares. Subject to regulatory approval (subsequently received), the -
Company also proposed to issue 338,905 common shares on the conversion of interest

owing under the promissory note. The Company re-structured its holdings in the
Guadalupe Project by selling its shareholdings in one of its Mexican subsidiaries,
. Minera Sierra Pacifico, S.A. de C.V. (“Sierra Pacifico”) , to an arm’s length purchaser,
for cash consideration of approximately $568,000 plus eligibility for recovery of an
additional $216,000 (approximately) of Value-Added-Tax from the fiscal authorities of
the Government of Mexico. The purchaser was also required to transfer the Guadalupe
Project concessions back to the Company, for no further consideration, at an agreed
value of approximately $1,600,000. In connection with this transaction, the Company
wrote-down its total investment in the Guadalupe Project to $3,180,383, the estimated
recoverable value of the in-ground resource ounces of the project. The Company
continued to maintain its rights to interests in the Guadalupe Project through its Mexican
subsidiaries, Minera Tatemas, S.A. de C.V. and Minera Reina Isabel, S.A. de C.V.

During 1999, in connection with private placements, the Company issued 4,500,000
units at a price of $0.06 per unit to a non-related party, and 750,000 at a price of $0.07
per unit to a related party, for total consideration of $322,500. Each unit was comprised
of one common share of the Company and one share purchase warrant. Each two
share purchase -warrants entitled the holder to ‘acquire one additional share of the
Company at $0.10 per share untll Apnl 27 2000 All war:rants were exercnsed dunng
March, 2000. : el TR e g . S

As a result of the Company’s expenditure reduction program, ﬁscal 1999 corporate
costs were approximately $352,000; a reductionof approximately $49,000 from fiscal
1998. " Project expenditures' in ‘Mexico continued on a maintenance of property title
basis basis.. Exploration and mineral property expenditures, including shares issued for
property - payments, ‘were approxrmately $631 000 as compared to approxnmately
$356 000 for frscai 1998 ‘ ST ~ o

In regard to the Guadalupe Pro;ect the Company recelved regulatory approval to

purchase a 100 percent interest in the: Los Reyes Oeste Frac. and a 100 percent -

interest in the southern portion (“South Block”) of the Los Reyes Norte concession, in
consideration of the issuance of a total of 3,250,000 shares of the Company s capltal to
Corporacron Industrlal San Luis, S A de C V. (" Lursmm") . ,

Under the- Guadalupe Prolect Gartan optson the Company paid to Enrique Gartan
Enriquez and Minera Campanillas *S. A. de C. V. (collectively “Gaitan”) U.S.$76,144,
and, pursuant to regulatory approval, issued 200,000 common shares to Gaitan at a
total deemed value of $16,000. The Company also re-negotiated payment terms to
allow for staged payments totaling U.S. $531,521 prior to December 31, 2002.

With respect to the Guadaiupe Project Mariposa option, the Company paid to Minera
Mariposa/Pan Atlantic Group (“Pan Atlantic Group®):a total of U.S. $20,000.. In
accordance with the agreement reached in 1998 and pursuant to regulatory approval,
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the Company issued to the Pan Atlantic Group a total of 200,000 common shares,
at a total deemed value of $16,000, and warrants to acquire a total of 100,000 shares in
the Company at prices varying from $0.04 to $0.09 per share, on or prior to December
20, 2004. The Company re-negotiated payment terms to allow.for staged payments
totaling U.S. $725,000 prior to June 30, 2004.

At December 31, 1999, the Company had a workihg capital deficit of}$852,003.

Fiscal 1998

During 1998, the Company issued, in connection with the issue of special warrants in
1996, 66,000 shares on the exercise of 132,000 warrants and issued 125,000 shares on
the exercise of 125,000 agent's warrants, for total consideration of $57,300. The
remainder of the underlying warrants lapsed unexercised. The Company announced
the adoption of a Shareholder Rights-Plan (the “Rights Plan”) for a term of five years.

The Rights Plan is designed to ensure that all shareholders receive equal treatment, to.
provide the shareholders with more time to consider any unsolicited take-over bid, and
to maximize shareholder value in the event of a take-over bid or other acquisition which
could lead to a change in controi of the Company. The Rights Plan is not mtended to
prevent a take-over or deter fair offers for the Company.

As a result of the Company’s continued expenditure reduction program, corpcrate costs
were approximately $401,000, a reduction of approximately $398,000 from fiscal 1997.
Project expenditures in Mexico were reduced to maintenance of property title basis, and
property acquisition costs were re-negotiated, resulting in exploration and mineral
property expenditures of approximately- $356,000 as compared to. approximately
$5,655,000 for fiscal 1997. In regards to the Guadalupe Project; the Company reached
agreement with Luismin for the purchase-of interests in certain minerai concessiors
forming part of the Guadalupe Project. Under the terms of the ‘agreement, the
Company could purchase a. 100 percent interest in an approximately 477 hectare
concession, the Los Reyes Oeste Frac., in-consideration of the issuance of 1,575,000
shares of the Company's capital to Luismin.  in addition, the Company was not cbliged
to pay the remaining staged option payments to Luismin totaling U.S. $550,000.
Luismin also agreed to the Companys purchase of a 100 percent interest in
approximately 531 hectares comprising the southern portion (“South Block”) .of the .
3,639 hectare Los Reyes Norte concession. The consideration called for the issuance
of 1,675,000 shares of the Company’s capital to Luismin, argd the extinguishment of the
Company’s previously scheduled expenditures over the next four years in the amount of
U.S. $1.0 million to earn ‘a 50 percent: interest' in the overall Los Reyes Norte
concessions. The Company would have a six year option to earn a 50 percent interest
in the 3,108 hectare “North Block” by completing exploration expenditures of U.S.

$500,000 with minimum annual- expenditures sufficient to maintain assessment work
requ:rements The agreements were subject to regulatory approval -

With respect to the Manposa option, remaining -payments due to the Minera
Mariposa/Pan Atlantic Group (“Pan Atlantic Group”) were also re-negotiated, resulting in
payments due in 1999 totaling U.S. $95,000, and U.S. $120,000 per year from 2000 to
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2004. Subject to regulatory approval, the Company was also required to issue to the
Pan Atlantic Group a total of 200,000 common shares, and warrants tc acquire a total of
100,000 shares in the Company at prices varying from $0.04 to $0 09 per share, on.or
prior to December 20, 2004.

At December 31, 1998, the Company had a working capital deficit of $1,013,522.
r | Fi nd 199

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, the Company had total assets of
$912,732 as compared with $3,417,024 and $12,593,094 for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998 respectively. Resource assets at
December 31, 2000 were $856,723 as compared with $3,180,383 and $12,549,100 at
December 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998 respectively. The reduction in resource
assets at December 31, 2000 results from the write-down of the Guadalupe property to
its estimated net realizable value in connection with the Meridian Agreements. The
reduction in resource assets at:December 31,.-1999. results from the sale by the
Company of its shareholdings in Sierra-Pacifico - and the wrlte-down of its remaining
resource assets to their estimated recoverable:value.: :

Cash at December 31, 2000-was of $46,546 as compared with:$27,701 and $8,485 at
December 31, 1999 and December 31,-1998 respectively: At December 31, 2000, the
Company.- -had- current- liabilities --of :$586;075. .as : compared :'with ~ $1,041,768 and
$1,022,007 at-December. 31,1999 and 1998:respectively: .The decrease in liabilities
from-1999. to- 2000 is- dueto.the:funds received:in: connection with:.the-sale by the
Company:of-its shareholdings -of Sierra-Pacifico, and the. Company’s ability:to satisfy a
portion of-its.creditors: The:increase in: liabilities-from.1998 to 1999 .is: due to:the funding
of expenditures:and -advances made to.the Company by:a related- party owned by
Directors of the Company. The advances are subject to:interest at-8% per annum. At
December 31; 2000,.the Company:owed:the related party $170,516. ($535,057 -and
$429, 394 at December 31 1999 and 1998 respecttvely) for funds advanced and-interest
thereon LT - : .

Exploratlon and mmeral property expendrtures in ﬁscal 2000- were of $142, 307 as -
compared: with- $630,595 for fiscal 1999 and $356,145 for fiscal 1998, as a result of
conserving: funds, and" utilizing a:maintenance: of property: title approach, with funds
expended 'primarily ‘on the Guadalupe.-Property. Commensurate with this change in
activity, administrative expenditures decreased in fiscal 2000 ($282,168) as-compared
with fiscal 1999 and 1998 ($351,809 and $401,443 respectively).

Shareholder communications in: fiscal. 2000 consisted primarily of management
response to shareholder and: pctential -investor inquiries.- There were no- specific
shareholder communication expenditures during fiscal 2000 and fiscal 1999, as
compared with $43,991 in fiscal 1998. Interest expenses decreased to $15,720 in fiscal
2000, as compared with $40,574 for fiscal 1999 and $10,695 for fiscal 1998, due.to the
repayment during 2000 of advances made to the Company by John S. Brock Limited.
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During fiscal 1999, the Company wrote off éxploration expenditures of $1,103,379 and
property acquisition expenditures of $1,286,366, as compared with $7,641,051 and

$1,345,634 respectively for fiscal 1999 and $1,371 and $nil respectively for fiscal 1998.
These costs relate to expenditures previously capitalized as Resource Assets.

Outlook

As at April 30, 2001, with receipt of all payments from Meridian, the Company has
completed the initial stages of its sale of the Guadalupe property in Mexico. Receipt of
proceeds from the sale of the property has allowed the Company to satisfy all its
creditors in full. It is anticipated that an estimated $223,000 will be receivable by way of
Mexican IVA refunds. The Company is dedicating itself to the pursuit of acquisition
opportunities in the mineral resource sector.



NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.
#1407 - 675 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1N2
Telephone: (604) 687-4951

INFORMATION CIRCULAR
AS AT AND DATED APRIL 16, 2001
' (uniess otherwise noted)

This Information Circular accompanies the Notice of the 2001 Annual General Meeting of
members of NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD. (hereinafter called the "Company"), and is
furnished in connection with. a solicitation of proxies for use at that Meeting and at any
adjournment thereof. _

REVOCABILITY OF PROXY

In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by
instrument in writing executed by the member or his attorney authorized in writing, or if the
member is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or attorney thereof, and deposited either at
the registered office of the Company at any time up to and inciuding the last business day
preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, or, as to any matter in respect of
which a vote shall not already have been cast pursuant to such proxy, with the Chairman of the
Meeting on the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, and upon either of such
deposits the proxy is revoked.

PERSONS OR COMPANIES MAKING THE SOLICITATION

THE ENCLOSED PROXY IS BEING SOLICITED BY
MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Solicitations will be made by mail and possibly supplemented by telephone or other personal
contact to be made without special compensation by regular officers and employees of the
Company. The Company may reimburse members' nominees or agents (including brokers
holding shares on behalf of clients) for the cost incurred in obtaining from their principals
authorization to execute forms of proxy. No solicitation will be made by specifically engaged
employees or soliciting agents. The cost of solicitation will be borne by the Company.

VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Company is authorized to issue 250,000,000 Common shares without par value. There is
one class of shares only. There are issued and outstanding 35,294,203 shares as at April 16,
2001. At a General Meeting of the Company, on a show of hands, every member present in
person and entitled to vote and every proxyholder duly appointed by a holder of a share who
would have been entitled to vote shall have one vote and on a poll, every member present in
person or represented by proxy shall have one vote for each share of which such member is the
registered holder.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company, no person or company
beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, voting securities
carrying more than 10% of the outstanding voting rights of the Company other than:




Name and Address Number of Shares Percentage
John S. Brock Limited
Suite 1407 5,495,062" © 15.6%
675 West Hastings Street :
Vancouver, BC V6B 1N2

M John S. Brock Limited is a British Columbia company owned by John S. Brock as to 70% and
Wayne J. Roberts as to 30%, which individuals own an additional 721,100 and 228,600 shares,
respectively, of the Company.

The directors have determined that all members of record as of the 1% day of May, 2001 will be
entitied to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting. Those members so desiring may be -
represented by proxy at the Meeting. The instrument of proxy, and the power of attorney or
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be
deposited either at the office of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company,
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 4™ Floor, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V6C 3B9, or at the Head Office of the Company at #1407, 675 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B 1N2 not less than 48 hours, Saturdays, Sundays and
holidays excepted, prior to the time of the holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY SOLICITED HEREBY WILL BE VOTED OR
WITHHELD FROM VOTING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN. WHERE
NO CHOICE IS OR WHERE BOTH CHOICES ARE SPECIFIED IN RESPECT OF ANY
MATTER TO BE ACTED UPON, THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY HEREBY
SOLICITED SHALL BE VOTED FOR THE ADOPTION OF ALL SUCH MATTERS.

ELEGTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, the number:of directors of the Cornpany is fixed at five
(5), until changed by Special Resolution and each director of the Company is elected into a
Class (1, Il or il}) for a term not o exceed three years-uniess.that person ceases to be a director
before then. The initial term of the Class Il directors expires at the Meeting and the current
Class lil directors, John S. Brock and Wayne J. Roberts, have been nominated by Management
for election as directors of the Company, for a three-year term expiring at the Company s 2004
Annual General Meeting, unless they cease to ke directors before then. The current term of the
Class | directors (currently Lawrence Page, Q.C. and Robert E. Swenarchuk) expires at the
2002 Annual General Mesting and the current term of .the Class |l director (currently R.E.
Gordon Davis) expires at the 2003 Annual General Mesting. - IN THE ABSENCE OF
INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRARY THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY PROXY WILL BE
VOTED FOR THE NOMINEES FOR CLASS ill DIRECTORS HEREIN LISTED.

MANAGEMENT DOES NOT CONTEMPLATE THAT THE NOMINEES FOR CLASS i
DIRECTORS WILL BE UNABLE TO SERVE AS DIRECTORS. IN THE EVENT THAT PRIOR
TO THE MEETING ANY VACANCIES OCCUR IN THE SLATE OF NOMINEES HEREIN
LISTED, IT IS INTENDED THAT DiSCRETIONARY: AUTHORITY SHALL BE EXERCISED BY
THE PERSON NAMED IN THE PROXY AS NOMINEE TO VOTE THE SHARES
REPRESENTED BY PROXY FOR THE ELECTION OF ANY OTHER PERSON OR PERSCNS
AS CLASS |l DIRECTORS.

The Management nominees for election as Class |l} directors, for a three-year term expiﬁng at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting held in the year 2004, and information concerning them as
furnished by the individual nominees is as follows:



Number Of Shares
Beneficially Owned,
Directly Or Indirectly,
-Or Over Which Control
Or Direction Is

Principal Occupatio'n'
And If Not At Present An
Elected Director, . ..

Name And Present Exercised At April 16, Occupation During The.
Office Held Director Since 2001 Past Five (5) Years
John S. Brock March 8, 1990. Exploration Geologist/Geophysicist;

Director, President and

Chief Executive Officer

6,216,162

Director and President, John S. Brock
Limited, Western Prospector Group
Ltd., Pacific Ridge Exploration Ltd.,
International Annax Ventures Inc. and
the Company

Wayne J. Roberts
Director and Vice-
President, Exploration

| March 8, 1990

228,600

Geologist, Vice-President of Exploration
and Director of John S. Brock Limited,
Officer of Pacific Ridge Exploration Ltd.,
Director of Western Prospector Group
Ltd Dlrector and Officer of the Company

M

The 6, 216 162 shares include 5,495,062 shares held by John S. Brock Limited, a British Columbia

company owned by John S. Brock as to 70% and Wayne J. Roberts as to'30%.
The nominees are residents of Canada.

Advance Notice of the Meeting was publlshed pursuant to: Sectron 111 of the Company Act at
Vancouver, British Columbla on April. 10 2001

The Company has an audit commrttee the members of which are Lawrence Page Q.C., Robert
E. Swenarchuk and R.E. Gordon Davis. - Thére'is no:executive .committee

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTtCES

The Company s approach to corporate governance matters is: desrgned wrth a view to: ensuring
that the'business and affalrs of the Company are: effectlvely managed so as: to enhance
shareholder vatue 3 S SRENE

Under - the rules of The Toronto Stock Exchange the Company is requrred to drsclose
information:relating 'to its system.of corporate -governance with reference to-guidelines set out in
the TSE :Company Manual (the “Guidelines”).. The: Company's drsclosure addressrng each of
the Gurdehnes |s set out |n Exhrbrt “A” to thrs Informatlon Crrcular .

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
(Form 41, B C. Secuntles Act and Rules)

"CEO" means the’ mdlvrdual who served as chref executlve officer of the Company or acted m a
similar capacrty durmg the most recently compteted fi nancral year .

"Named Executive Offi cer‘ means:
() the CEO regardless of the amount of compensation of that individual,
(ii) each of the Company's four most highly compensated executive ofﬂcers. other than the

CEO, who were serving as executive officers at the end-of the most recently completed .
financial year and whose total salary and bonus amounted to $100,000 or more, and
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(iii)
serving as an executive officer of the Company at the end of the most recently'
completed ﬁnancral year. l :

The foIlowmg table sets forth all annual and long term compensation for services to the
Company for the three most recently completed financial years as at December 31, 2000 in
respect of the Named Executive Officers. At the end of the Company's. most recently completed
financial year, the Company had one Named Executive Officer, John S..Brock, the Company's
President (CEO). There were no other executive officers of the Company, or other individuals,
whose total compensation exceeded $100,000 during the financial year ended December 31,
2000.

Summary Compensation Table

Named Executive Officers

any individuals who would have been included in. (ii) but for the fact that they were not -

Long-Term Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards Payouts
) Securities
Other under Restricted
Annual Options/ Shares or
| Compen- | SARs® | Restricted | LTIP® | All Other
Name and Salary | Bonus | sation Granted Share Payouts Compen-
Principal Position | Year'" ($) ($) ($) # Units ($) () sation'®
John S. Brock 2000 N/A N/A N/A . | 200,000 ° N/A N/A $29,613
President (CEO) ' S ,
: 1999 N/A T N/A N/A | NIA- N/A N/A $38,813
1998 N/A N/A N/A. N/A N/A - | N/A. $53,112
Notes: ey e
M Ended December 31

(2)
3
L@

- Stock-appreciation fights -

- Long- -term incentive plan - ‘ :

:These amounts represent payments to John S Brock made by John S Brock l_lr'uted for
services provided by John 8. Brock to the. Company under .a Management: Agreement
and an Exploration Services Agreement between the Company and John. 8. Brock
Limited. In addition, John S. Brock Limited, which is owned 70% by John S. Brock and
30% by Wayne J. Roberts, received compensation from the Company for services under
the Management Agreement and the Exploration Services Agreement. See “Termination

~ of Employment, Changes in Responsrblllty and Employment Contracts below for'

particulars of these contracts
Long Term Incentwe Plan (LTIP) Awards

The Company does not have a LTIP, pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation
intended to serve as an incentive for performance (whereby performance is measured by
reference to financial performance or the price of the Company's securities), was paid or

distributed to the Named Executive Officer during the most recently completed financial year,

other than the options set out below

OPTlONISTOCK APPIiECIATION RIGHTS ("SAR") GRANTS
DURING THE MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED FINANCIAL YEAR

During the Company's most recently completed financial year, stock options to purchase
200,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of $0.10 per share on or before October 2,
2002 were granted to the Named Executive Officer, although the Named Executive Officer has
waived his right to exercise these stock options until at least August 15, 2001.
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Stock Appreciation: Rights ("SARs") means a right, granted by an issuer or any of its
subsidiaries, as compensation for services rendered or in connection with an office or
employment, to receive a payment of cash or an issue or transfer of securities based wholly or
in part on changes in the trading price of the Company's shares. No SARs were granted to or
exercised by the Named Executive Officer during the most recently completed financial year.

AGGREGATED OPTHON/SAR EXERCISES DURING THE MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED
FINANCIAL YEAR AND FINANCIAL YEAR-END OPTION/SAR VALUES

The following table sets forth the details of all exercises of options/SARs during the financial
year ended December 31, 2000 by the Named Executive Officer, and financial year-end value
of unexercised options/SARs prevnously granted to the Named Executive Officer, on an
aggregated basis:

Value Of Unexercised In-

Unexercised The-Money

Options/SARs At Options/SARs

Securities Aggregate Financial Year End At Financial Year End
Name Of Acquired On Value #) ($)

Executive Exercise Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/

Officer (#) {$) - Unexercisable Unexercisable

John S. Brock Nil N/A - 420,000""/Nil Nil/N/A

M Comprised of stock options to acguire-v120,d‘(i)0‘ common shares of the Company at $0.30 per

" share, exercisable until November 15, 2001, 100,000 common shares of the Company at $0.30
per share, exercisable until October 2, 2002 and 200,060 common: shares of the Company at
$0.10 per share, exercisable until October 2, 2002. Mr. Brock has waived his right to exercise all
of these stock options until at least August 15, 2001.

Termination of Employment, Changes in Responsibility and Ernployment Contracts

The services of John S. Brock, the Named Executive Officer of ‘the Conipany, are provided to
the Company pursuant to a management agreement ("Management Agreement”) and an
Exploration - Services Agreement (“Exploration Agreement”) with John S. Brock'Limited ("JSB
Ltd."), a private company owned 70% by Mr. Brock and 30% by Mr.-Wayne J.'Roberts. Except
for the Management Agreement and the Exploration Agreement the Company. has no
employment contract with the Named Executlve Offi cer. -

Under the. Managernent Agreement the Company is charged for the cost of corporate and
administrative wages of JSB Ltd. employees incurred by JSB Ltd. on behalf of the Company at
JSB Ltd.'s cost plus a 5% mark-up, as well as office facilities and operations expenses incurred
by JSB Ltd. on behalf of the Company at JSB Lid.’s cost plus a 10% mark-up (1999: nil%, 1998:
nil%). For the following periods, the Company was charged as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2000 - . Cost . Markup
Corporate and administrative wages * o §52,017 $2,601
Office facilities and operations- : . 322,696 $2.911
Total in respect of the Management Agreement $74.713 $5,512
* includes $29,613 for services provrded by John S. Brock as Presrdent (CEO) of the Company
Year ended December 31,1999 R ' Q_o_s_t Mark-up
Corporate and administrative wages * $68,173 $3 409
Office facilities and operations - o $40.905

Total in respect of the Management Agreement " $102.078 53_4_0_9

Includes $38,813 for services provided by John S. Brock as: President (CEO) of the Company.




6
Year ended December 31, 1998 Cost Mark-up
Corporate and administrative wages *© $91,706 $4,586 -
Office facilities and operations i $62.989 None
Total in respect of the Management Agreement ‘ $154.695 $4,586

includes $53,112 for services provided by John S. Brock as President (CEO) of the Company.

Under the Exploration Agreement, the Company is charged for the cost of exploration and field
wages of JSB Ltd. employees incurred by JSB Ltd. on behalf of the Company at JSB Ltd.’s cost
plus a 5% mark-up, and exploration project management fees charged by JSB Ltd. calculated at
6% of all exploration costs incurred by the Company. For the following periods, the Company
was charged as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2000 ' Cost Mark-up
Exploration and field wages * $33,689 $1,684
Exploration Project Management Fees $None $2.765
Total in respect of the Exploration Agreement $33.689 $4.449
¥ Includes $32,250 for services provided by Wayne J. Roberts as Vice-President of the Company. -

Year ended December 31, 1999 Cost  Mark-up
Exploration and field wages $34,275 $1,174
Exploration Project Management Fees None - $2.659
Total in respect of the Exploration Agreement ‘ , $34.275 $4,373
) Includes $34,255 for services provided by Wayne J. Roberts as Vice-President of the Company.
Year ended December 31, 1998 ' Cost - Mark-up
Exploration and field wages " - $70,841 $3,544
Exploration Project Management Fees o None  $14,942

Total in respect of the Expioration Agreement e $7Q.§4 $J_8___8_6

. Includes $42 292 for servnces provuded by Wayne J Roberts as Vlce-PreS|dent of the Company

The Company has no compensatory plan or arrangement with respect to the Named Exécutive
Officer to compensate such Named Executive Officer in the event of the resignation, retirement
or any other termination of the Named Executive Officer's employment with the Company and
its subsidiaries or in the event of a change of control of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or in the avent of a change in the Named Executive Officer's responsibilities followmg a change
in control, where in respect of the Named Executlve Offi cer the value of such compensatlonA-
exceeds $100,000. ‘

Pen‘sion Arrangements

The Company and its subsrdlarles do not have any persron arrangements in piace for the
Named Executive Ofﬁcer ) .

Compensation of Directors

During the financial year ended December 31, 2000, none of the directors of the Company were
compensated by the Company or its subsidiaries in.their capacity as directers. The Company
has no arrangements, standard or .otherwise, pursuant to which its current directors are
compensated by the Company or its subsidiaries for their services in their capacity as directors,
or for committee participation, or involvement in special assignments during the most recently
completed financial year or subsequently, up to and including the date of this Information
Circular, except for stock options granted to directors and dirzctors may be reimbursed for
actual expenses reascnably incurred in connection with the performance of their duties as
directors and certain directors may be compensated for services as consultants or experts.




Directors are elrglble to receive stock options to purchase common shares of the Company
granted from time to time under the Company's Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") more particularly
described below under the heading “Particulars of Matters to be Acted Upon — Amendment to
the Company’s Stock Option Pian”.

During the Company's most recently completed financial year, an aggregate 475,000 options to
purchase common shares were granted to non-Named Executive Officer directors and otherf
Insiders of the Company as follows:

Exercise
Name of Price
Optionee ‘No. of Shares Per Share Date of Grant Expiry Date
Non-Named Executive
Officer Directors
Lawrence Page, Q.C. 50,000 - $0.10 March 7, 2000 . October 2, 2002’
R.E. Gordon Davis 50,000 $0.10 March 7, 2000 October 2, 2002
Wayne Roberts!” 200,000 $0.10 March 7, 2000 October 2, 2002
Other Insiders of the
Company .
Jeannine Webb 125,000 $0.10 | March7,2000 | October2, 2002
Ramon Farias 50,000. . $0.10 March 7,.2000 October 2, 2002

M

Mr. Roberts has waived his right to exercise these options until at least August 15, 2001.

The Company has no compensatlon plans or arrangements in-place. other than. the Ptan and
none are currently contemplated. The Company has no, pensron plan or other arrangements for
non-cash compensation fo the’ directors. _The Company hds, in. the past however, granted
stock options to the non-Named Executive Officer directors of the Company, which stock
options, exclusive of those granted during the. Companys most recently. completed ﬂnancral \
year, are outstandmg as set forth below:. . : L : o

o N Number of Exercrse Price
, Name . Date of Optlon | ExpiryDate | Shares Per Share

Lawrence Page, Q.C. Nov. 15/96 " Nov. 15/01 © 25,000 $0.30"
Lawrence Page, Q.C. ‘Oct. 2/97 " Oct. 2/02 50,000 $0.30
R.E. Gordon Davis Nov. 15/96 Nov. 15/01 25,000 $0.30
R.E. Gordon Davis Oct. 2/97 Oct. 2/02 50,000 $0.30

Wayne J. Roberts'”’ Nov. 15/96 Nov. 15/01 120,000 $0.30 ©
Wayne J. Roberts'”’ Oct. 2/97 Oct. 2/02 100,000 $0.30
Robert Swenarchuk Feb. 24/97 Feb. 21/02 - . 50,000 $0.30
Robert Swenarchuk Oct. 2/97 Oct. 2/02 100,000 $0.30
Robert Swenarchuk Nov. 15/96 Nov. 15/01 120,000 $0.30

M Mr. Roberts has waived his right to exercise these options until at Ieast August 15, 2001.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DiRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFiCERS
K AND SENIOR OFFICERS :

There is no |ndebtedne5° of any person who was a director of the Company at any t|me during
the last completed financial year or who is an executive officer, senior officer or proposed
nominee for election as a director or any associate or affiliate cf any of them, to, or guaranteed
or supported by the Company or any of its subsidiaries (either pursuant to an employee stock
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purchase program of the Company or otherwise), during the most recently completed financial -
year, other than routine indebtedness. :

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Management proposes the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, Chartered
Accountants, as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and that the directors be
authorized to fix their remuneration. PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP or its predecessor, Price
Waterhouse, have been the Company's Auditors since October 26, 1990.

INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSA("T!ONS

No mS|der of the Company, no proposed nominee for electlon asa dlrector of the Company and
no associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has any material interest, direct or indirect, in
any transaction since the commencement of the Company's last financial year or in any
proposed transaction, which, in either case, has materially affected or will materially affect the
Company or any of its subsidiaries other than as disclosed under the headings "Executive
Compensation" and "Particulars of Matters to be Acted Upon".

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

None of the directors or senior officers of the Company, no management nominee for election
as a director of the Company, none of the persons who have been directors or senior officers of
the Company since the commencement of the Company's last completed financial year and no
associate or affiliate of any of the foregoung has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way
of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Meeting
other than as disclosed under the headings "Executlve Compensatlon" and "Pamculars of
Matters to be Acted Upon" : Lo

PART"CL;LARS OF NATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Amendment to the Company s Stock Option Plan

The Cempany has a Stock Option Plan: outstandmg (the “Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is:to
provide directors, officers and key employees of, and: certain other persons ‘who provide
services to, the Company and its subsidiaries with an cpportunity to purchase Common shares
of the Company and benefit from any appreciation in the value therecf. This provides an
increased incentive for these individuals to contribute to the future success and prosperity of the
Company, thus enhancing the value of the Common shares for the benefit of all the
shareholders -and increasing the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to attract and retain
skilled and motivated individuals in the service of the Company. e o

The Pian currently provides that 2,865,000 Common shares are reserved for issuance pursuant
to the exercise of options granted under the Plan. The Plan provides that no one optionee can
receive stock options entitling the purchase of more than 5% of the outstandmg Common
shares in the capital of the Company, caiculated on a non-diluted basis, and.in no event shali
shares exceeding 5% of the outstanding issue be issued to any one insider of the Company,
and such insider's associates (as defined.in the Securties Act (British Columbia)) within any
one-year : period pursuant tc-stock. options ‘granted under the Plan or any other share
compensation” arrangement of the: Company The Plan further provides that any Common
shares subject to'a stock option which for any reason is cancelled or terminated without having
been exercised shall again be available for grant under the Plan. The Company does not
provide financial assistance to partncnpants under the Plan tc facilitate the purchase of Common
shares.
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The Plan has been approved by shareholders and The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE”). Of

the 2,865,000 Common shares reserved for issuance under the Plan, options to purchase up to

1,110,000 shares have been granted. Furthermore, options to purchase up to 610,000

Common shares of the Company have been granted outside the Plan and are outstanding.

Management of the Company is proposing that the Plan be amended by increasing, from

2,865,000 to 7,000,000 (being approximately 19.8% of the issued capital of the Company -
without reference to the outstanding options granted outside  the Plan), the maximum number of

Common shares reserved for issuance under- the Plan and, at the Meeting, members will be

asked to approve such proposed amendment.

If the specific grants of stock options to*insiders of the Company set out above, together with
any other proposed stock options or stock option plans (including the current Plan or as
amended), among other things, involving the issuance or potential issuance of shares of the
Company to one or more employees, insiders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
other person or company engaged to provide ongoing management or consulting services for
the Company or any entity controlled by the Company, could result, at any time in

a) the number of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options granted to insiders
exceeding 10% of the outstanding issue;

b) the issuance to insiders, within a one-year penod of a number of shares exceedmg 10%
of the outstanding issue, or. ‘ .

c) the issuance to any one msrder and sucl*unsmter‘s assocnates wnthrn a one-year period,
of a number of shares exceedlng 5% of the outstandrng issue;

the -policies cof the TSE and of the. Canadlan Venture Exchange (CDNX”) also require the’
approval of such grants or amendments to stock options or the Plan by way of "disinterested
shareholder” vote, being a majority of votes cast at the Meeting other than votes attaching to
securities beneficially owned: by insiders.:6f theé "Company -t6 ‘whom "Shares may be issued
pursuant to such grants or the Plan, and assocrates of such persons

To the knowledge of the Company, as at Apnl 16 2001 6 611 462 shares of the Company are
beneficially owned: by -insiders of the Company:to'whom ‘shares ‘may be issued pursuant to
grants .of stock options directlyor under:the Plan:and their-associates. = Accordingly; at the
Meeting; such shares so beneficially owned wnll not be counted for purposes of the approva! of
the proposed amendment to the Plan L TE

The ten'n msnders is. deﬁned in the Secuntres Act (Bntlsh Columb|a) and generally mcludes
directors and’senior officers of the. Company and its subsidiaries, the five highest paid employees
and holders of greater than 10% of the voting securities of the:Company. -

In the .event disinterested shareholder approval is not forthoomlng the Company will not prooeed
with the proposed amendment to the Plan. .

As noted above in footnote number (1) to the Table under the heading “Aggregate Option/SAR
Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and Financial Year-End
Option/SAR Values” on page 5 of this Information Circuiar, and in the Table at the bottom of
page 7 of this information Circular, there are outstanding stock options granted to the Named
Executive Officer and the non-Named Executive Officer Directors of the Company to purchase
an aggregate 860,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of $0.30 per share. By
definition, the Named Executive Officer and non-Named Executive Officer Directors are insiders
of the Company. There are also outstanding stock options granted to another insider of the




10

Company, Jeannine Webb, to purchase an aggregate 75,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of $0.30 per share. ‘

Management of the Company is proposing that such stock options entitling the purchase by
such insiders of an aggregate 935,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of $0.30 per
share be canceiled and options to purchase up to 790,000 shares of the Company be granted to
those option holders but at an exercise price more in line with the current market price of the
Company's shares in accordance with the policies of the CDNX and exercisable for a period of
5 years. Under the policies of the CDNX, the exercise price of stock options cannot be less
than $0.10 per share. Furthermore, under those policies, such a proposed cancellation and
grant of stock options in the circumstances equates to an amendment of a stock option held by
an insider that requires shareholder approval by “disinterested shareholder” vote, as that term is
more particularly described above under the heading “Amendment to the Company’s Stock
Option Plan”. Accordingly, at the Meeting, members will be asked to pass a resolution by
disinterested shareholder vote authorizing and approving the cancellation of stock options
entitling the purchase of an aggregate 935,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of
$0.30 per share and the grant, in accordance with the policies of the CDNX, of stock options
entitling the purchase of an aggregate 790,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of
not less than $0.10 per share for 5 years to the foliowing named insiders for the number of
shares set opposite their names:

Name of insider ‘ ' Number of Options
John S. Brock ' 220,000
Lawrence Page, Q.C. 75,000
R.E. Gordon Davis 75,000
Wayne J. Roberts - 220,000
Robert E. Swenarchuk _ 125,000
Jeannine Webb' © 75,000

~In the event disinterested shareholder approval is not forthcoming, the Company will not
proceed with the proposed amendments (by cancellation and re-grant) of options to insiders.

Advance Shareholder Approval forthe Issuance of a ‘Number of Shares by Private
Placement that Exceeds 25% of the Company’s issued and Outstanding Share Capltal

The Company from time to time investigates opportunities to raise fin nancnng-on adva,n_tageous
terms. in order to raise funds to expand its activities, the Company may undertake one or more
financings over the next year and expects some of them to be structured-as private placements.

Under the rules of The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE”), on which the Companys shares
remain listed, the aggregate number of shares of a listed company which ‘are‘issued or made
subject to issuance (i.e. issuable under a share purchase warrant or optlon or other convertible
security) by way of one or more private placement transactions during any particular six-month
penod must not exceed 25% of the number of shares outstanding (on a non-diluted basis) prior
to giving effect to such transactions (the “TSE 25% Rule”), unless there has been shareholder
approval of such transactlons

The apphcatlon of the TSE 25% Rule may restrict the availability to the Company of funds WhICh
it may wish to raise in the future by pnvate placement of its secuntles

in particular, management of the Company considers |t to be in the- best interests of the
Company to solicit private placement funds for working capital and Company operatlons The
TSE has a working practice that it will accept advance approva! by shareholders in anticipation
of private placements that may exceed the TSE 25% Ruie, provided such private placements
are completed within 12 months of the date such advance shareholder approval is given.
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THE COMPANY’'S ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING SHARE CAPITAL AT APRIL 16, 2001 IS
35,294,203 COMMON SHARES AND THE COMPANY PROPOSES THAT THE MAXIMUM
NUMBER OF SHARES WHICH EITHER WOULD BE ISSUED OR MADE SUBJECT TO
ISSUANCE UNDER ONE OR MORE PRIVATE PLACEMENTS N THE TWELVE-MONTH
PERIOD COMMENCING ON JUNE 7, 2001 WCULD NOT EXCEED 35,294,203 SHARES-IN
THE AGGREGATE, OR 100% OF THE COMPANY'S ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING SHARES
AS AT APRIL 16, 2001. ‘

Any private placevment proceeded with by the Company under the advance approval being
sought at the Meeting will be subject to the following acditional restrictions: -

(a) it must be substantially with parties at arm’s length to the Company;
(b). it cannot materially affect control of the Company;

(c) it must.be completed within a twelve-month period followmg the -date the shareholder
approval is given; and

(d) it must comply with the private placement pricing rules of the TSE which currently
require that the issue price per share must not be lower than the closing market price of
the Company’s shares on the TSE on the trading day prior to the date notice of the
private placement is given to the TSE (the “Market Prlce ). less the applicable discount,

as follows:
Market Price e Maximumbi‘scoﬁnt
$0.500rless 5%
$0.51 to $2.00 o e e 20%
Above$200. . . .o 15%

(For these purposes, a private placement of unlisted convertible securities is deemed to be a
private placement of .the underlying listed securities at an issue price equal to the lowest
possible price at wh ch the securities are convertlble by the holders thereof.)

In any_event, the TSE retains the discretion to decide -whether or not a particular placernent is
substantlally at arm’s length or will materially. affect control in which case specific.shareholder
approval may be required. . . . .

In anticipation that the Company may wish to enter into one or more private placements in the
next 12 months that will result in.it issuing and/or making issuable such number of its shares,
taking inte. account any shares that may. be lssued upon exercise of any warrants, options. or
other rights granted in connection with the private placements that will exceed the TSE 25%
Rule, -at the Meeting members will be ‘asked to pass an. ordmary resolution in the following
terms: : : :

“RESOLVED that the issuance by the Company in one or more private placements during the
twelve-month period commencing June 7, 2001 of such.number of secunities that would result in -
the Company issuing or making issuable up to 35,294,203 common shares as is more
particularly described in the Companys Information Circular dated Apnl 16, 2001, is hereby
authorized and approved.” ,‘ v

In the event shareholder approval is not forthocmingi the Company will not proceed with the
issuance of a number of shares by private placement that exceeds the TSE's 25% Rule.
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Capital Alterations

At last year's Annual General Meeting, the members of the Company approved, by Special
Resolution, a consolidation of the Company’s Common shares and subsequent increase in
authorized capital. Shareholder approval was sought on the basis of the Company’'s announced
intention to change the nature of its business from mining to the technology sector, and in
anticipation that a technology-related transaction would require issuance of share capital, that
additional share capital might also have to be issued in order to secure attendant financing and
that the terms of a transaction of the type contemplated may require & consolidation of the
Company's share capital. Shareholder approval was given to the proposed capital alterations
only if they were required for facilitation of such an acquisition and attendant financing.

No technelogy-reiated transaction was concluded during the year and, accordingly, the Special
Resolution approving the capital alterations has not been impiemented. The Company continues
to consider other acquisition opportunities in both the mining and non-resource sectors and the
underlying basis for seeking shareholder approval to the proposed capital alterations at last year's
Annual General Meeting, namely that an acquisition transaction will likely require issuance of
share capital, that additional share capital might also have to be issued in order to secure
financing and that the terms of an acquisition or financing may require a consolidation of capital,
continue to prevail. In anticipation thereof, and only if required for facilitation of such an
acquisition or financing, at the Meeting, the members of the Company will be asked to consider,
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without amendment, a Special Resolution in the following form:

Resolved, as a Special Resolution, that

(a) the authorized share capital of the Company be aftered by consolidating all of the
250,000,000 Common shares without par value into that number of Common shares
without par value as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company but, in
any event, not less than 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, up to a maximum
of 10 such shares being consolidated into one (1) Common share without par value;

(b) the authonzed capital of the Company be increased from not less than 25,000,000
Common shares without par value to 250,000,000 Common shares without par value;

(c) the Memorandum of the Company be altered to reflect the consolidation of share capital
and increase in authorized capital so that it shall be in the form presented to the Meeting
and set out in Schedule “A” to the Information Circular;

(d) the Board of Directors of the Company in their discretion by resolution may, without
requiring further approval, ratification or confirnation by the members, determine the
number of Common shares without par value into which the 250,000,000 Common shares
without par value are to be consolidated, provided, however, that such number shall not be
less than 25,000,000 Common shares without par value, and may decline to implement
this Special Resolution.

The proposed consolidation will not alter or change in any way any member’s proportion of votes
to total votes; however, the total votes capable of being cast by members at a General Meeting of
the Company in the future will be reduced if the Special Resolution is passed. Any resulting
fractional share will be dealt with by taking the number of shares issuable on the exchange to the
nearest lower whole share. In addition, the implementation of the proposed consolidation will be
subject to the Company first meeting the requirements of the stock exchanges having jurisdiction
over the Company’s shares with regard to share consolidations.
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Under the Company Act of British Columbia, any company may, by Special Resolution, alter its
memorandum to consolidate its share capital. “Special Resolution”™ means a resolution passed-by
a majority of not less than three-quarters (3/4) of the votes cast by those members, who, being
entitied to do so, vote in person or by proxy at a General Meeting of the Company where not less
than 21 days’ notice specifying the mtentuon to propose the resolutnon as a spemal resolutnon has ‘
been given. : :

If the resolution authorizing the propbsed‘c‘:apital alterations is "passed, certified copies are
required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies for British Columbia“and the resoluticn will
take effect on the date of stich filing. Notwithstanding that this resolution has been duly passed by
the members, the directors of the Company ‘may terminate the implementatlon of the matters
contemplated hereby at their sole discrétion.

MANAGEMENT KNOWS OF NO: OTHER MATTERS TC COME BEFORE THE MEETING
OTHER THAN THOSE REFERRED TO IN THE NOTICE OF MEETING. HOWEVER, SHOULD
ANY OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE MEETING, THE SHARES
REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY SOLICITED HEREBY WILL BE VOTED ON SUCH
MATTERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BEST JUDGMENT OF THE PERSONS VOTING
THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY

BOARD APPROVAL

The contents and the sending to members of this Informatlon Clrcular have been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

» BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

"JohnS Brock“ .' B

e

John S Brock
President




SCHEDULE “A”

FORM 1 (Section 5)
COMPANY ACT
ALTERED MEMORANDUM

(as altered by Special Resoiution passed June 7, 2001)

The name of the Company is “NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.”;

The authorized capitai of the Company consists of 250,000,000 Common shares without
par value.



EXHIBIT “A”

NORTHERN CROWN MINES LTD.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

] V ideli

Board should explicitly assume
responsibility for stewardship of the
Company, and specifically for:

a. Adoption of a strategic planning
Process

b. Identification of principal risks,
and implementing risk managing
systems

c. Succession planning and
monitoring senior management

d. Communications policy

Comments

In accordance with the Company Act (British
Columbia), the business of the Company is
managed under the direction of its Board of
Directors. The Chief Executive Officer and
President (the “CEO”") makes recommendations
to the Board of Directors with respect to matters
of corporate policy after discussion, when
appropriate, with members of Senior
Management. The Board of Directors then
makes the decisions which it deems appropriate
and supervises the execution of such decisions
and reviews the results obtained.

The duties of the Board of Directors include the
review on an ongoing basis of the Company’s
annual work plan and budget and strategic plan
of the Company, a discussion of such plan with
the CEO and an assessment of the risks
identified.

The Board of Directors’ duties include the review
of overall business risks and of the Company’s
practices and policies for dealing with these risks.

The Audit Committee reviews, reports and, where
appropriate, provides recommendations to the
Board on succession planning matters and, with
the Board of Directors, monitors the pefformance
of Senior Management.

The Board of Directofs, where required, approves
statutory disclosure documents prior to their
distribution to shareholders.

In addition, the Company has a shareholder
relations process to respond to shareholder
questions and concerns. All communications
from shareholders are referred to the appropriate
corporate officer for response, consideration or
action. Management promptly advises the Board
of Directors if any significant issues are raised by
shareholders. In addition, the Company
communicates with its shareholders, securities
analysts and the media regularly on
developments in its business and results, through
the annual report, quarterly financial statements
and reports to shareholders, press releases and
material change reports, when needed.




e. Integrity of internal control and
management information
systems

Majority of Directors shotild be
unrelated (independent of
management and free from
conflicting interest) to the Company
and the Company’s significant
shareholder, if any.

Disclose for each Director whether
he is related, and how that
conclusion was reached.

a. Appoint a Committee of Directors

responsible for proposing to the
fulli Board new nominees to the
Board of Directors and for
assessing Directors on an
ongoing basis; ‘

b. Composed exclusively o‘f outsidé -
{non-management) Directors, the

majority of whom jare‘unrelated.

Imp!ément a process for assessing
the effectiveness of the Board, its

Committees and individual Directors.

Provide orientation and education
programs for new Directors.

The Audit Committee, who reports to the Board
of Directors, provides assessment of the integrity
of the Company's internal controls and
information systems. The Audit Committee has
oversight responsibility of internal controls and
management information systems.

The Board of Directors is composed of 5
persons. Of the 5 Directors, 3 are "unrelated”
under the Guidelines and the 2 others are Senior
Officers of the Company. The 3 unrelated
Directors also have no business interests with the
Company or with its majority sharehoiders. The
Board of Directors fairly reflects, therefore, the
investment in the Company by the shareholders
other than the majority shareholders. -

John 8. Brock: Related. The President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

- Wayne Roberts. Related. -The Vice-Presid'ent,

Exploration of the Company.
Léwrence Page. Unrelated.

R.E. Gordon Davis. Unrelated.
Robert E. Swenarchuk. Unrelated.

The Company is at such a stage that it does not
consider it necessary to have a committee of
directors responsible for proposing tc the full
Board new ncminees to the Board of Directors.
Accordingly, the CEO submits to the Board of
Directors candidates to fill vacancies.on.the .
Board of Directors for its approval. Furthermore,
while there is no formal process for assessing
Directors on an ongoing basis, the: Directors feel
free to discuss specific situations from time to
time among themselves and/or with the CEO and
if need be, steps are taken to remedy the

'situation, which steps may include a request for

resignation.

See response to ltem 4a.
See response to item 4a.

New Directors participate in an initial information
session on the Company in the presence of the

. CEO. In addition, they are fumished with

appropriate documentation relating to the
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1.

Consider reducing size of Board,
with a view to |mprovmg
effectiveness. -

Board should review compensation

of Directors in light of risks and
responsibilities.

Committees of the Board should
generally be composed of outside
(non-management) Directors, a
majority of whom are unrelated ' -
Directors.

Board should expressly-assume

responsibility for, or-assigntoa -+«
‘committee the general’ responsubllity '

for, approach to corporate
governance issues.

a Def' ine' Ilmlts to management’
"-1respon5|bllrt|es by developlng
' mandates for &

(i) the Board

(ii) the CEO

. participation in incentive programs.

3

commercial activities of the Company and the
internal organization of the Company. The
meetings in which new Directors participate as
well as discussions with other Directors-and with
management permit new Directors to familiarize
themselves rapidly with the operations of the
Company.

The Board of Directors is of the view that its size
and composition are well suited to the
circumstances of the Company and aliow for the
efficient functioning of the’ Board asa
decision-making body. "

The Board of Directors reviews periodically all
compensation policies in light of market
conditions and practice and in light of risks and
responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has the responsibility,
upon the recommendation of the CEQ, for
defining salary classes and levels and extent of
In addition,
the Board determines, based on the proposal of

the CEO, the persons eligible to benefit from the

stock option plan and in which proportion,

- according to their position and assesses the
) performance of the CEO

” Audlt Commlttee See ltem 13
“The Board of Dlrectors is: re3p0n5|ble for
?developmg and-monitoring the’ Company s

approach to governance issiies and for the
_"Companys réspofise to the Guudelmes

‘The Board of Directors is, by law, responsible for

managing the business and affairs of the

- .Company. Any responsibility which is not

delegated to either management or a committee

remains:with the Board. In general, all matters of

policy. and all actiofs proposed: to be taken which
are not in the ordinary course of business require
the prior approval of the Board or of a Board

-committee to which approval authonty has been

delegated

The corporate objectlves WhICh the CEO is
responsible for meeting, with the rest of
Management placed under his supervision, are
determined by the strategic plans and the budget

as they are approved on an on-going basis by the
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13.

14.

b. Board should approve CEO’s
corporate objectives

Establish procedures to enable the
Board to function independently of
management.

a. Establish an Audit Committee
with a specifically defined
mandate.

b. All members should be non-
management Directors.

Implement a system to enable
individual Directors to engage
outside advisors, at the Company’s
expense.

4
Board of Directors. |

See item 11(ii).

While there are no formal structures in place to
ensure that the Board can function independently
of Management, the Board of Directors of the
Company is free to ask one or more members of
Management to withdraw during certain
discussions and the Directors of the Company
would not hesitate to meet without the presence
of the members of Management who are also
Directors, including the CEO, if the circumstances
were to so require.

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the review of the annual and
quarterly financial statements of the Company.
The Audit Committee has direct communication
channels with the external auditors to discuss
and review specific issues as appropriate.

The Audit Committee is composed of three
outside Directors, all of whom are unrelated to
the Company.

Individual Directors could, if required, retain
outside advisors at the Company’s expense.



" Northern CfoWn Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998
(expressed in Canadian dollars)’. |




March 23, 2001

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the company have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and contain
estimates based on management’s judgement. Management maintains an appropriate system of internal
controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets safeguarded, and
proper records maintained. ‘ ‘ :

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has met with the company’s independent auditors to
review the scope and results of the annual audit and to review the consolidated financial statements and
related financial reporting matters pnor to subnuttmg the consolxdated financial statements to the
Board for approval. - : -

The company’s mdependent audxtors PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, are appomted by the shareholdeljs
to conduct an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Canada, and their
¢ follows.

J eannme P.M. Webb
cial Officer

John S. Brock
President



PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

Chartered Accountants
1111 West Hastings Street
Vancouver British Columbia
Canada V6E 3R2

Telephone +1 (604) 806 7000
Facsimile +1 (604) 806 7806

March 23, 2001
(except for note 11, which is at April 9, 2001)

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Northern Crown Mines Ltd. (an exploration stage company) as at
December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the consolidated statements of loss and deficit, deferred exploration and mineral
property expenditures and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2000. 1999 and 1998. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsnblhty is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally acceépted auditing standards in Canada and the U.S. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain:reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estima_tes made by ma.nagement, as well as evaluating the overall ﬁnanci_a]vstatement presentation.

In our opinion; these consolidated financial statemems present fairly, inall material respects, the financial position of
the company as at December 31; 2000 and 1999 and the" Tesults 6f its ‘dperations and its cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As required
by the British Columbia Company Act, we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied, after giving
retroactive effect to,the change in the method of accountmg for income taxes as explained in note.2, on a basis .
consistent w1th that of the precedmg year .

WMJMMM 11/

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, Canada

March 23, 2001
(except for note 11, which is at April 9, 2001)

Comments by the Auditors for U.S. Readers on Canada-U.S. Reporting Conflict

In the United States, reporting standards for auditors require the addition of an explanatory paragraph (following the
opinion paragraph) when the financial statements are affected by significant conditions and events that cast substantial
doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern, such as those described in note 1 to the consolidated .
financial statements. Our report to the shareholders dated March 23, 2001, except for note 11 which is at April 9, 2001,
is expressed in accordance with Canadian reporting standards which do not permit a reference to such events and
conditions in the auditors® report when these are adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

%MMM&W {LP

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, Canada

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and other members of the worldwide
PricewaterhouseCoopers organization.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.
(an exploration stage company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at December 31, 2000 and 1999

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2000 1999
$ : $
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 46,546 27,701
Accounts receivable 6,331 162,064
52,877 189,765
Resource assets (note 4) 856,723 3,180,383
Capitgl assets - net of accumulated depreciation of $8,322 (1999 - $7,054) 3,132 46,876
912,732 3,417,024
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11) 107,430 313,264
Due to management company (notes 6 and 1]) 478,545 - 728,504
586,075 1,041,768
Shareholders’ Equity -
Capital stock (note'S) ' h
Authorized S . o
250,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued A D
35,294,203 common shares (1999 - 27,163,141) 17,375,019 16,731,044
Contributed surplus : . ' 64,784 | 64,784
Deficit (17,113,146) (14,420,572)
| - | 326,657 2,375256
912732 . 3417.024

Nature of operations and going concern (note 1)

Commitments (note 4)
Approv, e Board of Directors
M\ Director ( Director

7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2000 1999 1998
$ $ $
Administration expenses
Audit and related services 20,000 13,000 13,424
Bank charges 1,418 898 - 1,459
Consulting - 1,575 (1,923)
Depreciation : . 143 143 245
Insurance 2,010 2,019 19,769
Interest on promissory note (note 6) 15,720 40,574 10,695
Legal _ 58,668 78,855 65,971
Loss (gain) on foreign exchange (3,140) (1,306) ' 2,529 -
Office operations and facilities 86,806 ' 74,189 113,275
Salaries and wages : ' 54,042 70,419 78,351
Shareholder communication - - 43,991
Transfer agent and filing fees - 26,670 53,129 28,589
Travel 19,831 18,314 25,068
282,168 351,809 _ 401,443
Other expenses (income) , L o
Interest income ' ' o (1,179) (1,445) 217)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (note 3) - 408,282 -
Loss on disposal of assets ' 21,840 - -
Write-off of exploration expenditures (notes 3 and 4) 1,103,379 7,641,051 S L3710 .
Write-off of property acquisition costs (notes 3 and 4) 1,286,366 1,345,634 -
2,410,406 9,393,522 1,154
Loss for the year 2,692,574 9745331 . 402,597
Deficit - Beginning of year , 14,420,572 - 4,67524]1 4,272,644
Deficit - End of year 17,113,146 14,420,572 - '~ 4,675,241
Loss per common share 0.08 0.43 0.02
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding = 33,934,976 22,808,974 18,263,141

The accbfnpanying notes are an intégral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.
(an exploration stage company)

Consolidated Statements of Deferred Exploration and Mineral Property Expendltures B

_For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Exploration and mineral property expenditures
Accommodation

Assays and geochemical analysis
Consulting

Depreciation

Engineering and metallurgical
Environmental and permitting
Expediting

Field supplies

Fuel

Maps, printing and drafting
Project management fees
Property acquisition costs
Salaries and wages
Transportation

Mesa Galindo property (note 3)
Other .

Write-off of exploratlon expendxtures
Write-off of property acquisition costs

(Decrease) increase in exploration and mmeral '

property expenditures
Balance - Beginning of year

Balance - End of year (note 4)

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.

2000 1999 1998

$ $ $

174 : 4,582

. . 14

41,550 44,929 64,010
12,504 7344 12,456

- ) 33,350

- : 12,545

86 397 4598

X ; (2:904)

i ] 1272

82 937 21,405

2,765 2,658 14,942
48,974 540117 78,368
35.948 33,529 99344
224 684 12,163
142,307 630,505 356,145

: (992,200) .

(76.222) (20.427) )
(1,103.379) (7.641,051) (1371
(1.286.366) (1.345.634) T
(2.465.967) (9.999.312) (1,371)
(2.323.660) (9,368,717 354,774
3180383 12549100 12,194,326
856.723 3,180,383 12,549,100




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31,2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2000 1999 1998
S $ $
Cash flows from operating activities B }
Loss for the year (2,692,574) T {9,745,331) ‘ (402,597)
Items not affecting cash
Depreciation 143 143 - 245
Loss on disposal of subsidiary - 408,282 -
Loss on disposal of assets 21,840 ‘ - -
_ Write-off of exploration expenditures 1,103,379 7,641,051 1,371
- Write-off of property acquisition costs 1,286,366 1,345,634 -
A (280.846) (350,221) (400,981)
Changes in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 155,733 (160,487) 13,726
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued .
liabilities and due to management company (14,930) (181,259) : 357,328
140,803 (341,746) 371,054
(140,043) (691,967) (29,927)
Cash fiows from financing activities
Issue of common shares - 322,500 -
Exercise of warrants - e ' 263,715 - 57,300
Advances from related party 15,719 105,662 220,395
' 279,434 428,162 286,695
Cash flows from investing activities - e -
Sale (purchase) of capital assets =~ - . B . 9,257 T (8,000)
Exploration expenditures . (129,803) (283,751) (343,689)
Net cash received on disposal of subsidiary (note3) . ... - 566,772 -
{120.546) 283,021 (351,689)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents © 18,845 ' 19.216 . ' - (94,921)
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year 27,701 8.485 103,406
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year = 46.546 27,701 8,485
Supplements!-cash flew information - -
Non-cash operating activities
Settlement of accounts payable by acquiror
of Guadalupe property (note 4) (76,222) - -
Non-cash financing activities
Issue of shares on repayment of promissory note 380,260 - -
Repayment of promissory note (380,260) - -
Issue of promissory note for mineral property - 112,500 -
Issue of shares for mineral property (note 5) - 227,000 -
- 339,500 -
Non-cash investing activities
Mineral property costs 76,222 (339.500) -

" The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

1

Nature of operations and going concern

The company is in the business of acquiring and exploring mineral properties in Mexico and has not yet
determined whether its properties contain ore reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of
the amounts shown for resource assets is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves,
the ability of the company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and development of its
properties, and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of the properties.

As at December 31, 2000, current liabilities of $586,075 (1999 - $1,041,768) exceeded current assets of
$52,877 (1999 - $189,765). Of the current liabilities, $478,645 is owed to a party related by virtue of common
directors.

In connection with an option to purchase-agreement relating to the Guadalupe property entered into during
2000, the company received U.S. $390,000 prior to April 9, 2001 (notes 4 and 11).

The company s ability to continue operations is dependent on management’s abmty to secure addmonal
financing. Management is actively pursuing such additional sources of financing, and while it has been
successful in doing so in the past, there can be no assurance it will be able to do so in the future. Because of this
uncertainty, there is substantial doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a gomg concern.

These consohdated financial statements dc not include the. adjustments that would be necessary should the
company be unable to continue as a going concern. Such adjustments could be material.

Significant-accounting policies -
Accounting principles

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generélly accepted accouniipg
principles (GAAP) applicable in Canada. Except as disclosed in note 10, these consolidated financial
statements conform in all material respects with U.S. GAAP o :

Pnncnples of consolidation |

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its fully integrated foreign
subsidiaries, Minera Reina Isabel, S.A. de C.V. (Minera Reina) and Minera Tatemas, S.A. de C.V. (Minera
Tatemas), which were incorporated to carry out mineral exploration and development programs in Mexico.
During the year ended December 31, 1999, the company sold a wholly owned subsidiary, Minera Sierra.
Pacifico, S.A. de C.V. (Mmera S1erra) (note 3) S

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and

)]



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those reported.

Cash and cash equivalents -

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and short-term deposits maturing within 90 days of the original date of
acquisition. In order to limit its exposure, the company deposits its funds in government treasury bills and with
large financial institutions.

Resource assets

The company records its interests in mineral properties at cost less option payments received and other
recoveries. Exploration expenditures relating to these interests are capitalized until the properties to which they
relate are placed into production, sold or allowed to lapse. These expenditures will be amortized over the
estimated useful life of the property using the units-of-production method over proven and probable reserves
following commencement of production, or written off'if the mineral propemes or projects are sold or allowed
to lapse General exploration expendltures are expensed as incurred. - :

The company is in the process of exploring its various properties and has not yet fully determined the amount
of resources and reserves available in its properties. On a quarterly basis, senior management reviews the
carrying values of deferred mineral property acquisition and exploration:-expenditures to assess whether there
has been any impairment in'value. In the event that resefves are determined.to be insufficient to recover the
carrying value of any property, the carrying value will be written down or written off, as appropriate.

Although the company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties-in which it has an:interest, in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these procedures do

. not guarantee the company’s title. Property title may be subject to unregistered prior agreements and
non-complxance with regulatory requxremems )
From timie'to-time, the company requests: from the ﬁseal authormes of the Govemmem of Mexrco
reimbursement of value-added tax paid by Minera"Reina and Minera Tatemas: All tax refunds received are
accounted for on a cash basis and treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the related mineral property.
While the company has been successful in receiving reimbursement in the past, there can be no assurance that it
w111 be successful in the furure

Mmeral property optlon agreements

Option payments are made at the discretion of the opnonee and accordmgly, are accounted for on a cash basis.
Option payments received will be treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the related mineral property
and deferred costs until the company’s costs are recovered. Option payments received in excess of costs
incurred will be credited to income. oo

@




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
declining-balance method at a rate of 30% per annum.

Income taxes

Effective January 1, 2000, the company has retroactively adopted the liability method of accounting for income
taxes, following the new standard adopted by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The adoption of
the new standard resulted in no adjustment to opening deficit. Under the new standard, future income tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and those
reported in the financial statements. The future tax assets or liabilities are calculated using the tax rates for the
periods in which the differences are expected to be settled. Future tax assets are recogmzed to the extent that
they are considered more likely than not to be realized.

Translation of foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and
non-monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange rates in effect at the time of acquisition or issue. Income and
expenses are translated at rates approximating exchange rates in effect at the time of the transactions. Exchange
gains and losses arising on translation are included in loss for the period. -

Loss per common share -
Loss per common share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares issued and .

outstanding during each year. Fully diluted loss per share is not presented as the exercise of warrants and
options would be anti-dilutive.

Stock options

‘The company issues stock options from time to time as described in note 5. No compensation expense is
recognized when stock options are granted or exercised. Consideration paid for shares on exercise of stock
options is credited to capital stock.

Finanéial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and due to management company are valued
at their carrying amounts which are reasonable estimates of fair value due to the relatively short period to

maturity.
Capital stock

Where shares are issued for the acquisition of mineral properties, the ascribedprice per share is the market
price of the shares at the date of issue.

3)



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31,2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

3

Disposition of Minera Sierra

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the company sold one of its wholly owned Mexican subsidiaries,
Minera Sierra. Included in the assets of the subsidiary were certain Guadalupe de Los Reyes (MSP Guadalupe)
concessions, and the Mesa Galindo property.

Consideration consisted of cash proceeds of $568,566 and the commitment to transfer back to the company, for
no further consideration, the MSP Guadalupe concessions at an agreed value of $1,613,072.

The assets and liabilities disposed of on'the sale of Minera Sierra were as follows:

- $

MSP Guadalupe concessions B 1,613,072
Mesa Galindo mineral property 992,200
Cash 1,794
Amount payable to the company in respect of '
_ MSP Guadalupe concessions (1,613,072)
_ Accounts payable ‘ ‘ - I ©(17,146)
R Conmliui 976,848
Cash proceeds P i e D nr 568,566
Loss on disposal 408,282 .

As a result:of the valuation of the MSP-Guadalupe concessions determined in the above disposition, the
company .wrote:down its:remaining resource assetsby $8,986,685.t0.$3,180,383 at December 31, 1999.

Resource assets

2000 S 1999
) . s

Guadalupe
Property acquisition costs 856,723 2,170,337
Deferred exploration expenditures - 1,010,046

856,723 -~ 3,180,383

a) Guadalupe property

The Guadalupe property is comprised of four groups of concessions, three of which are governed by
separate acquisition agreements.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the company entered into exploration and option to purchase
agreements, whereby the company assigned its rights to the Guadalupe property in consideration for the

4




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

b)

optionor paymg the company U.S. $390,000 (note 1), settling payables of U.S. $50,000 ($76,222) on the

- company’s behalf in 2000 and making payments to the underlying vendors as follows:

On or before December 31,2000 Us. $155,000 (paid) ‘
2001 U.S. $200,000 (at the election of the optionor)
2002 U.S. $205,000 (at the election of the optxonor)

Upon completion of the payments, the optionor will have exercised its purchase option ﬁ'om the company
and the rights to the Guadalupe property will be effectively assigned. As a result of the above agreements,
the company wrote down the carrying value of the Guadalupe property at December 31, 2000 to its
estimated net realizable value of $856,723. The estimated net realizable value comprised the cash
payments of U.S. $390,000 and estimated IVA recoverable of U.S. $170,000.

The Guadalupe’s four groups of concessions are as follows:
1)  Guadalupe concession

The company holds an exclusive option to eam an effective 100% interest in the Guadalupe property
for total consideration of U.S. $1,733,744, of which U.S. $1,258,744 was paid prior to December 31,
2000.

In addition, during 1999, the company issued to the optionors 200,000 common shares of the
~ company (note 5).

ii) Los Reyes Norte concession

The Los Reyes Norte property is divided into two properties, the North Block and South Block. The
company holds an option to earn a 50% joint venture interest in the North Block by making
exploration expenditures totalling U.S. $1,000,000 on or before December 31, 2005, of which

U.S. $500,000 was the minimum expenditure required prior to December 31, 1997 (expended)
During 1999, the company acquired a 100% interest in the South Block by issuing 1 675 000 shares
of the company to the optionor (note 5). ‘

iii) Los Reyes Oeste concession

The company acquired a 100% interest in the Los Reyes Oeste property by making payments totallmg
U.S. $450,000 on or before December 31, 1997 (paid) and issuing 1,575,000 shares of the company
to the optioner during 1999 (note 5).

iv) Mariposa concession

The company holds an option to earn a 100% interest, subject to a 1% net smelter royalty to a
maximum of U.S. $1,000,000, in 11 concessions comprising the Mariposa property by making
payments totalling U.S. $1,177,500 on or before December 31, 2004, of which U.S. $527,500 has

been paid to December 31, 2000

&)



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

During 2000, in accordance with the agreements, the company issued 200,000 shares of the company
to the optionors (note 5) with 200,000 warrants attached, entitling the holder to acquire a total of
100,000 shares of the company at prices ranging from $0.05 per share to $0.09 per share on or before
December 20, 2003. During the year ended December 31, 2000, 24,300 shares were issued on the
exercise of warrants at $0.05 per share for total consideration of $1,215.

¢) During 2000, the company wrote off amounts relating to other properties of 511,982 (1999 - $103,817).

5 Capital stock

Authorized
250,000,000 common shares w1thout par value

Issued and outstanding

December 31, 1997
Forcash ...
Warrants

December 31, 1998
For cash
Private placement
Private placement
For properry acqmsmon
For property acquxsﬁxon

--December 31, 1999
For cash
Warrants
Warrants
For conversion of principal and interest on
. promussory note

December 31, 2000

Price per
share
S

7030

0.06

007

0.08*

006°

0.10
0.05

-..007

*value ascribed was the market price of the shares at the date of issue

a) During 2000: -

Number of
shares Amount
$
18,072,141 16,124,244
191,000 57,300
18,263,141 16,181,544
4,500,000 270,000
750,000 52,500
400,000 32,000
3,250,000 195.000
+ +7.163,141 16,731,044
2,625,000 262,500
24,300 1215
5,481,762 380,260
35204203 17.375.019

i) The company issued a total of 5 '481,762 common shares to a related party pursuant to the conversion
of the principal and interest owing under a promissory note, as to 5 ;142,857 common shares and

338,905 common shares respectively, for a total value of $380,260.

(6)




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

i1)

The company issued a total of 2,649,300 common shares on the exercise of warrants for total
consideration of $263,715.

b) Dunng 1999:

c)

d)

i)

ii)

The company issued 4,500,000 units in connection with a private placement at a price of $0.06 per
unit to a non-related party, and 750,000 units in connection with a private placement with a related
party at a price of $0.07 per unit, for total consideration of $322,500. Each unit comprised one
common share of the company and one common share purchase warrant. Each two share purchase
warrants entitle the holder to acquire one additional share of the company at $0.10 per share until
April 27, 2000. At December 31, 1999, all warrants remained outstanding.

The company issued a total of 3,650,000 Shares, for an ascribed value of $227,000, and 200,000
warrants in connection with the Guadalupe property (note 4).

During 1998:

i)

“ e

The company issued 191,000 shares on the exercise of 257,000 warrants for total consideration of
$57,300. . . e :

Options

i)

The company has established a stock option plan whereby the Board of Directors may from‘time to

- time grant up to a total of 2,865,000 options to-directors, officers or employees. The maxirmum term

of any option is five years. The exercise price of an option is not less than the closing price:on the
Toronto Stock Exchange on the last trading day preceding the grant date. Options vest on the grant
date.

A summary of the status of the company’s options as at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and changes
during the years then ended is set out below:

2000 o o 1999
Weighted Weighted
average : ~ average
Shares exercise price - Shares exercise price
Outstanding -
Beginning . . .
of year 1,085,000 v - 0.30 1,545,000 0.30
Granted 675,000 0.10 - -
Expired ' - 50,000 F 0.30 - 460,000 0.30
Outstanding -
End of year 1,710,000 0.24 1,085,000 0.30

M



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements :
For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 - -

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

iii) As at December 31, 2000, options granted to directors and employees to purchase common shares of

the company were outstanding and exercisable as follows: |

Number of Price per
shares share Date granted Expiry date
\ S , .7
- 460,000 0.30 November 15, 1996 - November 15, 2001
100,000 0.30 February 11, 1997 February 11, 2002
50,000 0.30 February 21, 1997 : February 21, 2002
425,000 0.30 October 2, 1997 - October 2, 2002
675,000 ‘ " 010 March 7, 2000 October 2, 2002
1,710,000

Of the above options, 610,000 were issued prior to the implementation of the stock option plan.

As at December 31, 2000, the weighied aQerage remaining contractual life of the outstanding stock options

is 2.3 years.

e) Warrants

A sumrnary of the status of the. company s warrams as: at December 31 2000 and changes dunng the year

- then ended is set out below:

Weighted

Warrants average

. outstanding ‘exercise price

Outstanding - Beginning of year 5,350,000 0.05
Exercised - o C - 5,274,300 0.05
 Outstanding - End of year 75,700 0.06

At December 31, 2000, 75,700 warrants to acqulre 75, 700 shares of the company remain outstanding,
exercisable at the following prices:

o  $0.06 per share from December 21, 2000 to December 2j0, 2001
o $0.07 per share from December 21, 2001 to December 20, 2002
e $0.09 per share frem Dec_ember 21, 2002 to Decembe.r 20, 2003

®)




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

6

Related party transactions

The company has agreements with John S. Brock Limited, a company owned by John S. Brock, the President
of the company (70%), and Wayne J. Roberts, the Vice-President, Exploration of the company (30%).

Under the management agreements with John S. Brock Limited, the company paid the followmg in the year
ended December 31, 2000:

a) Cost of operations and administration, charged at John S. Brock Ltd.’s cost plus a 10% mark-up (1999 and
1998 - nil%) totalling $50,612 (1999 - $73,674; 1998 - $106,169).

b) Fees for professional services provided at per diem rates, totalling $61,863 (1999 - $73,038; 1998 -
$95,404).

c) Exploration services charged at cost plus 5% mark-up (1999 and 1998 - nil%), and project management
fees calculated at 6% of all exploration costs totallmg $5 838 (1999 $4, 423 1998 - $47,035).

d) Amounts payable under the agreements at December 31, 2000 total $308,129 (1999 - $l93 448) There are
no stated terms of repayment.

During 2000, under a promissory note bearing interest at 8% per annum, the company repaid principal of
$360,000 and interest of $20,260 to John S. Brock Limited by the issue of shares: At December 31, 2000, the
company owed John S Brock Limited $170,516 (1999 $535 057) for funds advanced and mterest cha.rged
(note 11). s _

Income taxes

A reconciliation of the combined Canadian federal and provincial income taxes at statutory rates and the
company’s effective income tax expense is as follows:

2000 1999 . 1998

$ $ $
Incomc tax (recovery) at statuiory ratess - - (1,211,658) (4,385,399) (181,169)
Increase (decrease) in taxes from
Write-down of mineral properties and -
deferred exploration expenditures 1,075,385 4,227,735 617
Benefit of losses not recognized 136,273 157,664 180,552

®



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 -

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

The components of future tax assets are as follows:

Y
Other deductible tax pools ' 67,000
Allowable capital losses 2,250.000
Non-capital loss carryforwards 1,710,000

' i . . 4,027,000
Less: Valuation allowance ‘ " (4,027,000)

Future income tax asset -

At December 31, 2000, the company has approximately $3,800,000 of Canadian operating losses available for
carryforward, $252,000 of Canadian exploration expenditures, $415,000 of Canadian development
expenditures and approximately $500,000 of Mexican tax losses, which may be available to offset future
taxable income. The Canadian loss carryforwards of $3,800,000 expire at various times from 2001 to 2007. The
potential future benefit of these losses has not been recorded. In addition, the company has an estimated
$10,000,000 capital loss available for indefinite carryforward but only to offset future capital gains. .

8 Segmented information - ‘ I R P

The company ' has one operatlng segment whlch is the exploranon of mmeral propemes in Mexico.

December 31, 2000

Canada Mexico .Consolidated

. $ o ‘.S ‘ - 8

Current assets ‘ 42968 ¢ 9,909 E 52,877
Capital assets - 58 3,074 3,132
Resource assets - - 856,723 856,723
43,026 869,706 012,732

2000

Canada Mexico - Consolidated

$ $ $

" Operating ioss =~ o A 236,616 2,457,137 2,693,753
Interest income (1,179) - (1,179)
Loss for the year 235,437 2,457,137 2,692,574

(10)




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

December 31, 1999

Canada Mexico Consolidated

$ $ $

Curx:ent assets 189,765 - 189,765
Capital assets 201 46,675 46,876
Resource assets - 3,180,383 3,180,383
189,966 3,227,058 3,417,024

1999

Canada Mexico Consolidated

» 8 $ $

Operating loss | 699,975 9,046,801 9,746,776
Interest income . (1,445) - (1,445)
Loss for the year S _ 698,530 : 9,046,801 9,745,331
| \ 1998
RN Lo -+, . Csnada .. - .. Mexico = Consclidated

' % ) s

Operating loss : . 311,094 91,720 402,814
Interest income 217) - 217)
Loss for the year 310,877 91,720 402,597

9  Shareholder rights plan

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the company adopted a shareholder rights plan {the Plan), which is
- designed to encourage the fair treatment of the company’s shareholders in connection with any take-over offer

and, i in particular, any unsohclted take-over bid for the company.

Pursuant to the Plan, nghts have been created and attached to the common shares of the company. If a person
(the Bidder) acquires 20% or more of the outstanding voting shares of the company without complying with the
Plan, each right, other than the rights held by the Bidder, will entitle the shareholder, other than the Bidder, to
purchase for $30, common shares of the company having a market value of $60.

(11



Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements b
For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

10 ‘Material differences between Canadian and U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
a) Accounting for stock-based compensation o

For financial statement presentation purposes, the cdmpany follows the recommendations of APB25 in
accounting for stock options. This requires the recognition of compensation expense only when the option
price is less than the stock price on the grant date.

K b) " Mineral property exploration expenditures

Mineral property exploration expenditures are accounted for in accordance with Canadian GAAP as
disclosed in note 2. For U.S. GAAP purposes, the company expenses as incurred exploration expenditures
relating to unproven mineral properties.

For U.S. GAAP cash flow statement purposes, exploration expenditures would be shown under operating
activities rather than under investing activities.

¢) Accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities

In June 1998, the Financial Accournting Standards Board issued SFAS 133 which standardizes the
accounting for derivative instruments and is effective for all fiscal years begmmng after June 15, 2000.
The implementation of this standard will have no impact on the company’s financial statements.

d) " If these consolidated financial statemients were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, the impact on the
consolidated balance sheets would be as follows:

2000 1999

S $

__Resource assets - under Canadian GAAP . 856,723 023,180,383
Exploration expenditures - (1,010,046)

Resource assets - under U.S. GAAP 856,723 2,170,337
Deficit - under Canadian GAAP .. (17,113,146) -(14,420,572)
Exploration expenditures : - (1,010,046)
Deficit - under U.S. GAAP (17,113,146) (15,430,618)

(12)




Northern Crown Mines Ltd.

(an exploration stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

In addition, the impact on the consolidated statements of loss would be as follows:

2000 1999 1998
$ $ $
Loss for the period - under :
Canadian GAAP (2,692,574) (9,745,331) (402,597)
Exploration expenditures - net of
write-downs 1,010,046 7,570,999 (276,407)
Loss for the period - under '
U.S. GAAP (1,682,528) (2,174,332) (679,004)
Loss per common share - under |
U.S. GAAP (0.05) (0.10) (0.04)

11 Subsequent event

On April 9, 2001, the proceeds of U.S. $390,000 from the sale of the Guadalupe property were used to settle all

of the liabilities of the company at December 31, 2000.

(13)
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